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To meet the needs of its customers, Bradken 
employs over 2,900 people globally and operates 
20 manufacturing and service facilities and over 

20 direct sales offices throughout Australia, 
New Zealand, China, the United Kingdom and in 

strategic international locations.

Through its five Divisions of Mining, Mineral 
Processing, Rail, Industrial and Power & Cement, 

Bradken uses its years of experience to develop 
innovative and differentiated consumable products 
for the mining, steel making, smelting, transport, 

power generation and cement industries.

Proud to Belong. 

Bradken Limited 
ACN 108 693 009

Notice of Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of Bradken Limited will be held 
at the Crowne Plaza Newcastle, Ballroom,   
Cnr Merewether St & Wharf Rd, Newcastle NSW 2300
on Wednesday, 31st October 2007 at 2:30pm.

A formal Notice of Meeting is enclosed.

The leading supplier of
differentiated consumable products

to the resources industry

Servicing Australia’s resources and rail freight 
industries through five product focused divisions, 

Bradken is a leading supplier of differentiated 
consumable products, capital equipment

and associated maintenance and
refurbishment services.
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Highlights
In a year of high activity,  
Bradken has:

Achieved a net profit after tax of $49.1 million, up 45%

Declared a fully franked dividend of 31.5 cents, up 50% on 2005/06

Improved quality of earnings to achieve excellent profit performance

Introduced a fifth Division to the Company with the acquisition of  
Firth Rixson Castings (UK)

Increased capacity and achieved synergy savings with the acquisition 
of Wundowie Foundry (WA)

Bolstered Bradken’s market position in the sugar industry with the 
acquisition of Boogan Implement Company (QLD)

Made a 19% investment in AmeriCast Technologies, Inc along with 
Castle Harlan, Inc (New York)

Spent $76 million on acquisitions and $42 million on capex and still 
improved the balance sheet to fund growth

Launched the “Bradken Employee Share Ownership Plan” to 
encourage employee ownership through a progressive roll out   
during the year
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NPAT

EBITDA

EBITDA Margin

Sales Revenue

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Dividend per Share (DPS)

Operating Cash Flow

$49.1m

$102.6m

16.0%

$639.7m

46.3 cents

31.5 cents

$65.2m

$33.9m

$77.4m

14.1%

$547.8m

32.0 cents

21.0 cents

$67.7m

45%

32%

17%

45%

50%

-4%

2007 2006 Change

12 months ended 30 June 

NPAT – Net Profit After Tax 

EBITDA – Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
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Nick Greiner 
Chairman

It is pleasing for me to report that Bradken Limited 
has continued its excellent performance both 
financially and operationally throughout its third year 
as an ASX listed company.

For the last two years, total shareholder return as 
measured by the change in share price and dividends has 
exceeded 100%. This has been the result of significant 
capital appreciation due to both strong results and a 
re-rating by the financial markets.

During the year we acquired Firth Rixson Castings in the 
United Kingdom, which becomes a fifth Division of the 
Company known as Power & Cement. Erection of our new 
rail sub-assembly manufacturing facility on six hectares 
of land in Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, China to augment 
the Rail Division’s Australian plants is on schedule to 
commence operation later this year. The Board is 
extremely supportive of acquisitions and capital expansion 
of this type, as they provide growth opportunities for the 
Company on the world stage.

In addition to expending a significant amount on new 
capital equipment, we are investing heavily in people and 
technology to preserve our competitive advantage. We 
will continue to increase our domestic training effort as 
well as bring overseas tradespeople to supplement the 
workforce in areas of skill shortage.

During the year we refocused our remuneration strategy 
to achieve a better balance of company performance, 
reward and retention of our key executives and 
development of future leadership talent. This involved a 
review of the executive performance evaluation system 

and both short and long term incentives. We now 
consider that the level and composition of executive 
remuneration packages are both reasonable and 
competitive.

The Audit Committee was pleased with the standard 
of accounting being achieved within the Group and 
were particularly encouraged by the early and efficient 
preparation of this year’s statutory accounts at a 
time when a number of overseas operations were 
incorporated for the first time. A focus of the Committee 
during the year was in the area of Risk Management. 
Approaches to the process for improving the Company’s 
internal audit and risk management functions were 
reviewed and plans established. 

We remain mindful of the need to regularly assess our 
succession plans and that of management to ensure we 
maintain a balance of skills and capabilities across the 
Company.

In financial terms, apart from the excellent profit and 
dividend outcomes, our strong cash management 
continued during the year. This will enable us to fund 
a record capex this year without undue stress on the 
balance sheet. 

The Board remains committed to the provision of 
quality and timely communications with the market 
and shareholders. It is committed to best practice in 
corporate governance and its ability to add value to the 
Company on behalf of its shareholders.

In strategic terms, we propose to stick to our present 
Business Model and avail ourselves of opportunities 
for organic and acquisition growth both in Australia 
and overseas. As forecast last year, we are beginning 
to replicate our model and regional sales on a global 
scale. The strategies for future growth continue to look 
appropriate and with our strong people, manufacturing 
and technology base, we expect to continue satisfactory 
growth, profits and dividends.

On behalf of the Board, I thank Brian Hodges and 
his team for their continued excellent performance 
throughout this year.

Nick Greiner 
Chairman

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
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Brian Hodges 
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer 

2007 has seen Bradken continue to move forward 
with a number of strategic acquisitions and key 
initiatives introduced to grow the quality of earnings.

Continuing strong growth

Bradken achieved record sales of $639.7 million, 
representing a 17% increase on 2005/06 and a 32% 
growth in EBITDA. This was achieved by sales volume 
expansion in mining consumable products and a strong 
year of freight wagon manufacture. The EBITDA margin 
continued to expand achieving 16%, a record increase 
up from 14% in 2005/06, primarily through cost 
containment and the benefits of vertically integrated 
acquisitions, scrap procurement and machining 
equipment upgrades.

Sales of iron ore wagons, along with higher refurbishment 
and parts sales, offset lower volumes for bogies and 
general freight work, resulting in a strong increase in 
sales revenue up 15% in 2006/07 for the Rail Division.

Tonnes mined and moved are key drivers of demand for 
your Company’s products. During the year the volume of 
demand for resources was varied. Iron ore grew strongly, 
led by demand from China. Coal showed marginal growth, 
while copper and gold production declined in Australia. 
Growth in key commodities is forecast by Australian 
Bureau of Agriculture and Resource Economics (ABARE) 
to continue for some years although growth rates may 
moderate over time.

Sound Business Model

We made a number of acquisitions this year including 
Wundowie Foundry in Western Australia, Boogan 
Implement Company in Queensland, Firth Rixson Castings 
in the United Kingdom. We also acquired a 19% stake in 
AmeriCast Technologies, Inc in the United States.

The acquisition of Firth Rixson Castings Limited in the 
United Kingdom, installed as the Power & Cement 
Division of Bradken, is positioning itself for global growth.

Wundowie Foundry has been a wonderful acquisition for 
Bradken with strong returns from identified synergies, the 
use of available surplus capacity and relocation of some 
existing production and equipment to Wundowie.

As a complementary acquisition, Boogan Implement 
Company provides an excellent opportunity to combine 
the strengths of both businesses and we will work on 
capturing the synergies available from this acquisition. 
Boogan’s production capabilities are well matched to the 
industries it services and the business is closely aligned 
with the Bradken Business Model in that it manufactures 
and sells a range of capital and consumable parts to a 
well-defined market.

During the year Bradken invested alongside Castle Harlan 
of New York in AmeriCast Technologies, Inc in the United 
States. AmeriCast is a manufacturer of the largest cast 
parts for the mining and rail industries in North America. 
We acquired a 19% stake in AmeriCast which has since 
acquired Atlas Technologies, a significant competitor.

In 2006/07, we spent over $40 million on capex, most 
notably on our development in Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, 
China. We are developing Bradken China as a wholly 
owned entity. We have employed a Chinese management 
team and 40 employees who have commenced 
dispatching products from leased premises. Our own 
facilities will be operational this calendar year. This has 
been an excellent effort by all concerned and I mention 
specifically the senior Bradken management who have 
devoted significant time and energy to this project. The 
Chinese people have proved engaging and diligent and 
we believe there are great successes to come. While 
production is exclusively for export only at this time, the 
facility offers excellent opportunities for long-term growth 
to sell within China, as world class mines are developed.

While we stick closely to our strategies for improving the 
quality of earnings, we continue to look for high margin 
differentiated niche markets and at the same time cost 
reduction opportunities.  

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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Our recent acquisition of TMS Engineering in Tasmania 
is evidence of our commitment to vertically integrate 
machining facilities into our foundry group.

Good People and Culture

While we have had a deterioration in our safety 
targets, due primarily to the performance of our 
recent acquisitions, we recognise that this situation is 
unacceptable to Bradken and we are working hard on 
behavioural issues to address the decline.

We are continuing to put maximum effort into our 
human resources. This is a time of high turnover of 
labour in Australia, which we are keen to minimise, 
especially people who have the skills essential for our 
continued growth. We believe we have a competitive and 
attractive salary system in place and have introduced 
new opportunities for employees such as salary sacrifice 
for shares and other incentives designed to encourage 
loyalty.

Skilled tradespeople and professionals have been brought 
in from overseas to address specific regional skills 
shortages and to allow more work to be undertaken 
locally, although labour sourcing is becoming more difficult 
and skilled and semi-skilled labour shortages continue 
to be a significant issue. We are expanding our line 
management training program which we call our “CEO 
Leadership Program”.

We are also devoting considerable attention to 
apprenticeship intake and training in general as well as 
overseas sourcing where necessary.

Outlook

We see the resources industries of iron ore and coal 
continuing to increase production and the general freight 
industry being strong. 

We are looking to expand margins with capex investment 
and productivity initiatives along with our increasing 
resources applied to product development. We have 
made a number of very successful acquisitions and 
finished 2006/07 with an enhanced balance sheet. We 
will continue to examine complementary acquisitions, 
which fit closely with our Business Model.

We need to continue investing for the future, not only 
in capital, but in people. More and more those people 
are coming from wider geographies including the United 
Kingdom and China as well as Australia. Bradken does 

not believe in the demise of the Australian manufacturing 
industry, but seeks to build a competent, skillful workforce 
with common values to enhance the business into the 
future.

As a company, Bradken seeks to provide long-term, low 
risk returns from the resources industry. We endeavour 
to do more than just grow with the market. By creating 
quality returns from our products and services, we 
generate the cash flows to grow by acquisition and 
thereby enhance shareholder value. In the current 
environment, Bradken has been able to achieve this while 
continuing to pay sound dividends and this remains our 
aim for the future.

Brian Hodges 
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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PEOPLE & SAFETY

Bradken has total commitment to 
achieving a safe, productive and  
healthy work environment whilst 
providing opportunity for its employees 
to grow and develop themselves and 
their careers.

Safety

Bradken aims to conduct its business in a responsible 
manner that protects the health of employees and the 
wider community.

There has been an increase in the lost time injury 
frequency rate from 6.5 to 8.9 in the past year, after 
consolidating our new acquisitions into the business. 
Five of our sites celebrated a lost time injury free year, 
which is two more than the previous year.

Safety continues to be a major focus and will be 
improved through further application of our 21 Step 
Safety Plan and increased emphasis on behavioural 
safety methodologies.

Personnel Development

Bradken has devoted considerable attention to ensuring 
it has a sufficiently and appropriately skilled domestic 
labour force. Skilled tradespeople and professionals 
continue to be sought from overseas to address 
specific regional skill shortages and to allow more work 
to be undertaken locally.

Employee retention and loyalty are also key factors and 
Bradken has expanded employee choice with respect to 
packaging options and work arrangements.

We continue to grow and develop employee skill 
levels and competencies. Significant investment has 
been made in staff training and in the employment of 
apprentices and trainees in all disciplines. In the past 
year, the CEO Leadership Program has been introduced 
to provide for the continual development of employee 
competency as each individual develops their career 
with Bradken.

Significant effort has also been made to instill 
Bradken’s core values through the introduction of the 
Bradken Recognition Program culminating in an annual 
recognition evening.
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ENVIRONMENT

Bradken takes a long-term proactive 
approach to improving its facilities and 
manufacturing processes to protect the 
environment in which it operates.

Overview

The company operates an environmental management 
system, which complies with the International 
Environmental Standard ISO14001. This system is 
implemented throughout all of Bradken’s upgraded and 
new manufacturing facilities.

Bradken continues to invest in research and 
technology for environmental improvement and has 
spent in excess of $2 million in capital investment on 
environmental initiatives throughout the year.

Highlights

•  Due to the implementation of strategic scrap 
initiatives, the total quantity of recycled scrap 
increased dramatically to 59,000 tonnes during 
this financial year. Of particular note is the 18,290 
tonnes of alloy scrap, which contributed significantly 
to cost savings by reducing ferroalloy raw material 
purchases.

•  We recycled 26,497 tonnes of industrial waste to 
other industries instead of sending to landfill (26% 
of total waste). Our ability to recycle more industrial 
waste was hampered by the drought in south east 
Queensland.

•  Bradken registered as a consumer of more than 
0.5 petajoules of energy through the Federal 
Government’s Energy Efficiencies Opportunities 
Regulations. The first site audit of our Wodonga 
foundry has been completed.

•  Several sites are in areas of severe water 
restrictions, especially Runcorn and Ipswich in 
Queensland. Independent audits have been very 
complementary of our water saving initiatives and 
practices.
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Bradken takes a proactive approach 
to customising technology to achieve 
a leadership role in the design and 
manufacture of its differentiated 
consumable products.

Bradken also promotes and maintains 
several technological alliances with 
key customers and third parties with 
respect to material and specific product 
development opportunities.

Highlights

Bradken installed a $5 million induction hardening cell 
for Crawler Shoes at the Runcorn facility in Brisbane. 
The cell is capable of induction hardening multiple 
Crawler Shoes to Bradken’s propriety specifications 
and tolerances. Incorporated into the cell was the 
installation and customisation of a state-of-the-art 
Union Borer.

Bradken representatives attended the GIFA technology 
trade fair in Germany for the adoption of world’s best 
practice in capital upgrades.

The Company initiated material and product 
development for power station coal pulveriser 
mill consumable products, which made significant 
improvements in wear life and operational safety.

We initiated a project to research the feasibility of 
customising robotics and metrological equipment in 
foundry applications.

Bradken is in the process of reviewing cutting edge 
processes and materials development through 
partnerships with:

• Co-operative Research Centre at the University of    
 Queensland (CAST); and

• The University of Newcastle Research     
 Association (TUNRA) - Bulk Materials Handling.

TECHNOLOGY
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MINING

Business Overview
Bradken has unrivalled experience in the design, manufacture, refurbishment and 
maintenance of an extensive range of high quality, high performance wear resistant 
products, for both mobile and fixed plant and equipment.

The Mining Division manufactures a comprehensive range of ground engaging tools (GET) 
and mining buckets. These are fitted to draglines, hydraulic excavators and loaders. This 
product line continues to grow with new innovative products.

The Crawler Systems Group designs and manufactures a range of crawler shoe systems 
fitted to electric shovels and hydraulic excavators. These leading edge products are sold to 
both original equipment manufacturers (OEM) and directly to end users.

The Wear Plate and Block Group manufactures and sells a range of wear resistant 
products used in both fixed and mobile plant applications. These highly adaptable products 
are customised to suit customer specific wear applications.

The Mining Division operates a number of fabrication and maintenance workshops 
strategically located at Mackay in Queensland, Hunter Valley in New South Wales and 
Bassendean in Western Australia. It also operates foundries at Welshpool in Western 
Australia and Runcorn in Queensland.

The Division maintains a regionally focused sales force across 14 mining regions in 
Australia and in key international locations. The Division continues to grow to meet the 
needs of its customers and opened two new offices in the past 12 months.

The Year in Review
Bradken’s Mining division continues to experience strong 
growth as a result of increased demand in the resources 
market. Its activities achieved a 12% increase in sales 
revenue for the year. There has been continued growth 
across all products lines driven by demand for first 
fitments from OEM customers and for replacement 
products from mining customers.

The Mining division manages three major product groups 
and has achieved much strategic and financial success 
throughout the past year. 

The supply and the refurbishment of dragline and 
excavator buckets continued to be a priority and provided 
a platform for GET consumable sales. During the year 
a number of initiatives were introduced to drive sales. 
The roll-out of the new hammerless locking systems 
continued during the year to support customer safety 
initiatives. Continuation of the staff development program 
has further developed our staff skill base, and new 
sales offices have been established, or strengthened at 
Gladstone and Emerald in Queensland and at Gunnedah in 
New South Wales, to improve customer focus.

The Crawler Systems group increased sales driven by 
strong demand for new mining equipment. The group 
continued to work with major OEM’s on joint design 
projects for the next generation of customised products 
and to expand the range of products offered to our direct 
customer base.

Strategic initiatives throughout the year positioned the 
Wear Plate and Block group business for future growth. 
Capacity was increased across key product groups 
through the acquisition of the Wundowie foundry business 
and by the installation of new robotically operated 
equipment for the manufacture of clad plate products. 
This group is now well positioned to meet the ongoing 
expansion of the mining industry.
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The Mining division’s sales revenue 

increased 12% in 2006/07 with 

consumable product sales forecast to 

remain strong, in line with mine production 

levels, particularly iron ore and coal.
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MINERAL PROCESSING

Business Overview
Bradken is a market leader in the design and manufacture of a range of consumable 
parts, capital equipment and supply of refurbishment services to the mining and 
quarrying industries.

The Mineral Processing Division produces differentiated product designs for grinding 
mill liners, crusher liners and pump parts. The Division also produces vertical stirred 
mills and rotary breakers, complemented by a full refurbishment service.

Our focus is on providing customers with innovative, cost effective solutions designed 
to lower overall processing costs in their grinding and crushing operations.

The Mineral Processing Division operates foundries at Henderson in Western 
Australia and Adelaide in South Australia. It also manages Bradken’s scrap business 
with processing locations at Cannington in Western Australia and Runcorn in 
Queensland.

The Division maintains a regionally focused sales force located across 12 sites 
throughout Australasia and in key international locations including South America 
and Africa.

The Year in Review
Lower mine production in the Australian gold and 
copper sectors, and one off clearances of consignment 
stock and manufacturing work in progress during the 
year, resulted in an 11% sales decrease.

Despite the lower sales, margin improvements were 
gained through increased manufacturing efficiencies, 
improved alloy scrap utilisation and an ongoing focus on 
product differentiation and customer support.

During the year major contracts were established 
with customers such as BHP Billiton and Newcrest 
Mining, underpinning significant future volumes for the 
business.

The approval process for the proposed Adelaide 
foundry redevelopment, where an ultimate capacity 
increase from 13,000 to 32,000 tonnes per annum 
over a three year period is envisaged, is nearing 
completion. A final decision from the South Australian 
government was pending at the time of publication of 
this report.

Following the successful integration of the acquired 
Western Australian scrap business in March 2006, 
Bradken is now fully self sufficient for mild steel scrap 
for its three Western Australian foundries. Expansion 
of the scrap strategy is underway. A dedicated 
facility under development on the Runcorn foundry 
site in Queensland, is scheduled for completion in 
October, 2007. In addition, Bradken has increased 
its purchased volumes of alloy scrap from the mining 
industry, reducing manufacturing input costs and is 
employing additional staff in key mining regions to 
provide further impetus to this initiative.

While Australian demand for the mill liner and crusher 
liner product ranges is expected to be flat in 2008 in 
line with mine production volumes of gold and copper, 
future significant domestic projects such as the 
proposed BHP Billiton Olympic Dam Mine expansion 
provides optimism for long term domestic growth for 
the Division’s key products.

In addition, a restructuring of sales and technical 
support resources for the South America and African 
regions has lead to new business being won, with 
increased sales and market share in both regions 
expected from 2008.
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Despite an 11% reduction in sales due to 
lower mined volumes of gold and copper, the 
Mineral Processing Division achieved margin 
improvement on increased manufacturing 
efficiencies, improved alloy scrap utilisation 
and maintained an ongoing focus on product 
differentiation and customer support.
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RAIL

Business Overview
Bradken’s Rail business has developed a position of innovation and differenti-
ation in the heavy haul market. Bradken designs, manufactures and refurbishes 
freight rollingstock capable of standing up to the harshest climates and most 
demanding operating conditions in the world.

A variety of iron ore, coal, bulk and intermodal rail freight wagons, freight 
bogies and drawgear componentry are designed, manufactured and refurbished 
by Bradken’s highly skilled workforce. Incorporated with capital builds are best 
practice maintenance services and a comprehensive range of spare parts 
warehoused throughout a national network.

Bradken aims to build on its market share through innovative designs and 
customised solutions. The design capability at the core of Bradken’s operations 
offers designs to suit standard, broad, narrow and one metre gauge railways, 
with Bradken’s 40 tonne axle load bogie being globally acknowledged as the 
heaviest payload bogie on the market.

Bradken’s Rail division operates manufacturing, refurbishment and maintenance 
facilities at Ipswich in Queensland, at Newcastle and Mittagong in New South 
Wales and a manufacturing facility at Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province in China.

Bradken’s regional teams are located in the key iron ore, coal and general 
freight hubs throughout Australia.

The Year in Review
Bradken’s Rail Division experienced an increase in 
sales revenue of 15% this year due to a continuous 
and increased iron ore wagon build program. Bradken 
continued to supply iron ore wagons and bogies for 
use in the Pilbara region of Western Australia, with the 
4,000th iron ore wagon built and delivered to Rio Tinto 
Iron Ore in May 2007.

The buoyant general freight market resulted in a 
number of intermodal contracts being awarded to 
Bradken. The new build program of 328 Bradken 
designed coal wagons for Pacific National commenced 
in June 2007. Four major tenders covering 2,400 
wagons for production 2008/09 are yet to be 
awarded.

Bradken’s wagon fabrication facility at Ipswich in 
Queensland attained a significant milestone with a 
two year lost time injury free work performance. The 
introduction of the Company’s 21 Step Safety Plan was 
instrumental in this achievement.

A manufacturing facility under construction at Xuzhou, 
Jiangsu Province in China is due to open in late 
2007. A temporary facility has been established and 
is supplying fabricated components for use in the 
Australian build program. The Chinese management 
team and workforce are in place with additional land 
reserved for future wagon building facility and foundry 
construction.
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Focused on providing freight rollingstock 

to the iron ore, coal, bulk and intermodal 

markets, Bradken Rail Division is a 

market leader.
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INDUSTRIAL

Business Overview
Bradken’s Industrial Division manufactures and supplies a range of cast, machined and 
fabricated products to a wide range of industries including smelters and refineries, 
steelworks and scrap processing, sugar production, mining, and truck manufacture.

With years of experience and skills in diverse manufacturing processes, Bradken 
meets customers’ needs by providing products manufactured to specification, 
customised products and products based on Bradken’s proprietary designs. Manufac-
turing is supported by a skilled product development team, who assist by providing 
product application solutions to customers.

Industrial castings are manufactured from a variety of materials including iron, 
complex alloy steel and stainless steel.

The industrial product range includes: ingot moulds and sinter bars for the steel 
industry; rabble arms and anode hangers for the smelting and refining industries; kiln 
tyres, augers, rolls and mill trunnions for the cement and brick industry; cane bins, 
wear parts and pinions for the sugar industry; contracted parts for various machinery 
and truck original equipment manufacturers; and consumables for the metal recycling 
industry. The products can be supplied ‘as cast’ or Bradken can provide a service of 
finished machining, gear cutting and fabrication to complete the product package.

The Industrial Division operates foundries and engineering workshops at Ipswich and 
Innisfail in Queensland, Wodonga in Victoria, Launceston in Tasmania, Wundowie in 
Western Australia and Dunedin in New Zealand.

The Division maintains a regionally based sales network across eight sites throughout 
Australia and in key international locations.

The Year in Review
Bradken’s Industrial Division achieved a strong full year 
result, with sales revenue increased by 38% due to the 
acquisitions completed during the year. The quality of 
earnings was in line with sales growth.

This year saw strong industry based demand 
supporting resource sector growth including mining 
support, transport, and downstream processing.

The Division also expanded its capacity through 
acquisition. The Wundowie foundry in Western 
Australia uses a high volume, cost effective Disamatic 
moulding system that not only gives the Industrial 
Division the diversity to enter new product markets, but 
offers production savings across all Bradken divisions. 
Wundowie Foundry has been an excellent acquisition 
for Bradken with strong returns from identified 
synergies and the use of available surplus capacity, as 
well as the relocation of some existing production and 
equipment to Wundowie.

The addition of the Boogan Implement Company 
in Innisfail strengthens Bradken’s presence in the 
sugar industry. Innisfail offers a range of engineering, 
fabrication and wear solutions that complement 
the Industrial Division’s supply of castings. Innisfail’s 
production capabilities are well matched to the 
industries it services and the business is closely 
aligned with the Bradken Business Model in that 
it manufactures and sells a range of capital and 
consumable parts to a well-defined market.

The Industrial Division’s order book remains strong.
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By streamlining the supply chain process 

through vertical integration, Bradken’s 

Industrial Division is able to offer 

differentiated products into a diverse 

range of markets to meet the growing 

needs of our customers.
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POWER & CEMENT

Business Overview
The acquisition of the Firth Rixson Castings business in the United Kingdom 
has extended Bradken geographically as was forecast, while maintaining the 
Company’s focus on differentiated consumable products.

Bradken has become a major supplier of grinding elements, liners and other 
related products used in coal fired power generation, cement production and 
other industries with equally demanding applications world-wide.

Bradken’s new Power & Cement Division maintains a position of strength in 
the supply of these consumable products through interaction with customers 
targeted at the development of cost effective solutions to operational problems. 
The solutions developed are based on performance optimised products.

The Power & Cement Division operates foundries at Scunthorpe and Darlaston 
in the UK and has a sales force focused on global markets.

The Year in Review
The Power & Cement Division was formed in December 
2006 and since then has contributed almost $30 
million of sales revenue. With both key markets being 
strong, particularly in the developing economies, order 
intake outstripped capacity resulting in a 30% growth 
in the order book.

Utilisation of foundry capacity available within the 
Group, as well as completed and planned capital 
expenditure programs focused on machining facilities, 
will address this imbalance.

In the power sector, progress was made in penetrating 
the South African market with a more technically 
advanced product. In the cement sector, orders were 
taken for two major new plants in the United States, 
Ashgrove and St Genevieve.

Cost reduction programs, together with the impact 
of capital expenditure projects produced year on year 
profit improvement.

Significant capital expenditure is planned for both 
United Kingdom sites, which will concentrate on 
removing bottlenecks in finishing operations and 
thereby increase capacity to cater for growing   
demand.
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Since its formation in December 2006, 

the Power & Cement Division has 

contributed almost $30 million in sales 

revenue with notable successes in North 

America and South Africa.
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Mr Gregory R Laurie Mr Phillip J ArnallMr Vincent J O’Rourke AM
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Mr Nicholas F H Greiner AC
Independent Non-Executive Chairman (Age 60)

Nick Greiner was appointed to the Board on 13 
April 2004.  He is a member of the Remuneration 
Committee.

He was Premier and Treasurer of New South Wales 
from 1988-1992 and has extensive experience as a 
corporate director.

He is currently Deputy Chairman of Stockland Trust 
and a director of McGuigan Simeon Wines Limited 
and various private groups.  Nick is also Chairman 
of the Australian Subscription Television and Radio 
Association (ASTRA) and on the Committee for 
Economic Development of Australia’s (CEDA’s) Board of 
Governors.

In 1994, he was awarded a Companion of the Order 
of Australia for public sector reform and management 
and services to the community.

Nick holds a Bachelor of Economics with Honours from 
Sydney University and a Master of Business Adminis-
tration with High Distinction from Harvard Business 
School.

Mr Brian W Hodges
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 
(Age 54)

Brian Hodges was appointed to the Board on 13 April 
2004.

He has been Chief Executive of the Bradken business 
since 1997. He has guided Bradken and its culture 
through periods of considerable change and corporate 
activity with four different owners during his tenure as 
Chief Executive.  Over the course of his career, Brian 
has gained considerable management and leadership 
experience in raw material production and processing, 
supply and logistics and steel manufacturing.

Brian holds a Bachelor of Chemical Engineering with 
Honours from the University of Newcastle.

Mr Phillip J Arnall
Independent Non-Executive Director (Age 62)

Phil Arnall was appointed to the Board on 13 April 
2004.  He is a member of the Audit Committee and 
Remuneration Committee.

He has extensive experience in the mining and steel 
industries in management positions.  

Phil was the General Manager International at Smorgon 
Steel Group Limited and he held various senior 
positions at Australian National Industries Limited 
including, Chief General Manager of Structural Steel 
Product Group, Group Chief Executive of Tube Mills 
and Mining Services and Group Chief Executive of ANI 
Products Group.

He is currently Chairman of Ludowici Limited, Capral 
Aluminium Limited and is a director of a number of 
private companies.

Phil holds a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) from 
the University of Newcastle.

Mr Vincent J O’Rourke AM
Independent Non-Executive Director (Age 71)

Vince O’Rourke was reappointed to the Board on 8 
August 2004.  He is Chairperson of the Remuneration 
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.

He has spent over 40 years in the rail transport 
industry, 10 of which were as Chief Executive of 
Queensland Rail. Vince is Chairman of the Co-operative 
Research Centre for Rail Engineering and Technologies, 
the Great Australian Trunk Rail System and the 
Workplace Health and Safety Board of Queensland.

He was awarded a Member of the Order of Australia in 
2000 and a Centenary Medal in 2003 for services to 
the rail transport industry and Queensland Rail.

Vince holds a Bachelor of Economics from the 
University of New England.  He is an Honorary Doctor 
of the Queensland University of Technology and Griffith 
University.

Mr Gregory R Laurie
Independent Non-Executive Director (Age 65)

Mr Greg Laurie was appointed to the Board on 
24 February 2005.  He is Chairman of the Audit 
Committee.

Greg has extensive experience in a number of manufac-
turing and distribution industries.  He was Finance 
Director of Crane Group Limited for almost fifteen 
years until 2003 and prior to that, the Chief Financial 
Officer of then listed company, Rheem Australia 
Limited.  He is an independent non-executive director of 
Nick Scali Limited and Big River Timbers Pty Limited.

Greg holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the 
University of New South Wales.
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Mr Brian W Hodges
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (Age 54)
Brian has been Chief Executive of Bradken since 1997. He has guided 
Bradken and its culture through periods of considerable change and 
corporate activity with four different owners during his tenure as Chief 
Executive. Over the course of his career, Brian has gained considerable 
management and leadership experience in raw material production and 
processing, supply and logistics and steel manufacturing. Brian holds a 
Bachelor of Chemical Engineering with Honours from the University of 
Newcastle.

Mr Christopher Burdon
General Manager Power & Cement (Age 56)
Following a career in metallurgical research Chris has had over 25 years 
of experience in a range of senior positions in technical and general 
management in the metals sector, most recently 5 years with Firth 
Rixson Castings. He joined Bradken in 2006 with responsibility for the 
manufacturing facilities at Scunthorpe and Darlaston, both in the UK, 
and manages the power and cement business. Chris has a degree in 
metallurgy from the University of Sheffield, is a Chartered Engineer and  
a Member of the Institute of Materials, Minerals and Mining.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Mr Andrew J Allen
General Manager Industrial (Age 45)
Andrew has been with Bradken for 27 years and was appointed General 
Manager Industrial in 2004 following his appointment as General 
Manager Mineral Processing in 1998. Andrew oversees the Industrial 
Division and is responsible for manufacturing facilities at Ipswich and 
Innisfail in Queensland, Wodonga in Victoria, Launceston in Tasmania, 
Wundowie in Western Australia and Dunedin in New Zealand. He has 
gained considerable manufacturing and technical expertise over his 
long operational and management history within Bradken. Andrew holds 
an Associate Diploma in Metallurgy Engineering from Sydney Technical 
College.

Brad Ward reviews the latest ABARE 
commodities statistics

Mr Bradley J Ward
General Manager Mineral Processing (Age 41)
Brad has been with Bradken for 22 years and was appointed General 
Manager Mineral Processing in September 2004. He oversees the 
Mineral Processing Division and is responsible for manufacturing facilities 
at Henderson in Western Australia and Kilburn in South Australia as well 
as the specialty scrap operation in Cannington, Western Australia. Brad 
has gained considerable marketing, sales and manufacturing expertise 
over his long operational and management history with Bradken in 
Australia, North America and South America.

Chris Burdon and Brian Hodges review the 
Power & Cement Division business plan

Andrew Allen reviews operations at 
Wundowie Foundry
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Mr John Saad
Chief Technical Officer (Age 44)
John has been with Bradken for 20 years and was appointed Chief 
Technical Officer in March 2005. He is responsible for Bradken’s 
technological direction, process and product innovation and advancement. 
John has had considerable experience in all divisions of Bradken previously 
occupying positions as a Multi-site Manufacturing Manager, Technical and 
Product Development Manager for Mineral Processing and Head of Rail 
Engineering. John holds a Bachelor Degree in Metallurgical Engineering 
from the University of New South Wales.

Mr David Brown
General Manager Rail (Age 54)
David joined Bradken in January 2007 and was appointed General 
Manager Rail in July 2007. David is responsible for sales and production 
of capital products and the provision of maintenance, refurbishment 
services and spare parts distribution. He is responsible for manufacturing 
facilities at Ipswich in Queensland, Newcastle and Mittagong in New South 
Wales and Xuzhou in China. David has over 29 years experience in the 
steel industry and a distinguished career in mining and rail consumable 
products. He holds a Batchelor of Science with Honours in Mineral 
Technology from the University of Otago and is a member of Australian 
Railway Industry Corporation and the Australasian Railway Association.

Mr Wayne G Herbertson
General Manager Human Resources (Age 46)
Wayne was appointed General Manager Human Resources in December 
2004. He is responsible for all aspects of human resources, occupational 
health and safety and quality. Prior to joining the Bradken business, Wayne 
held senior positions with several international companies. Wayne holds 
a Master of Applied Science Metallurgy, Bachelor of Applied Science 
Metallurgy, Bachelor of Applied Science Multidiscipline, Associate Diploma 
of Theology and a Diploma in Occupational Health and Safety.

Mr Bruce D Arnott
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary (Age 51)
Bruce joined the Bradken business in 2005 as Chief Financial Officer and 
is responsible for finance, treasury, taxation, supply, investor relations, 
investments, audit and insurance. He was appointed Company Secretary 
of Bradken Resources in 2005. Prior to joining Bradken, Bruce held 
various senior finance positions within several major steel manufacturing 
companies. Bruce holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of 
Newcastle and is a member of CPA Australia.

Mr Enda Sheridan
General Manager Mining (Age 42)
Enda has been with Bradken for 17 years and was appointed General 
Manager Mining in 2004 following five years as General Manager 
Industrial. His responsibilities include the management of the Mining 
Division and Bradken’s manufacturing facilities at Mackay and Runcorn in 
Queensland, Welshpool and Bassendean in Western Australia, and Mount 
Thorley and Muswellbrook in New South Wales. Enda has held a number 
of production, technical and marketing positions with Bradken. He holds a 
Bachelor of Materials Engineering from the University of Limerick, Ireland 
and a Master of Business Administration from the University of Newcastle.

John Saad presents a materials 
development strategy to
Rail Division engineers

Bruce Arnott and Enda Sheridan reviewing 
the Mining Division maintenance facility

at Muswellbrook

Wayne Herbertson and David Brown 
checking progress of the new facility and 

workforce in China
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Bradken Limited
Directors' report

30 June 2007

Directors' report

A.
B.
C.
D.
E.

A. General information

Principal activities






Directors

N F H Greiner
B W Hodges
P J Arnall
G R Laurie
V J O'Rourke

Information on directors

Nicholas F H Greiner, AC, B.Ec., MBA. Independent Non-Executive Chairman. Age 60.
Experience and expertise

Other current directorships

Former directorships in the last three years

Special responsibilities

Interest in shares

Brian W Hodges, B.Chem.Eng. (Hons). Managing Director. Age 54.
Experience and expertise

Other current directorships

256,814 ordinary shares in Bradken Limited.

Corporate governance
Review of operations
Remuneration report

supply and service of wear components for mining and earthmoving equipment

Other information

Chairman of Bilfinger Berger Australia, Deputy Chairman of Stockland Trust and a Director of Blue Freeway, McGuigan Simeon
Wines Limited and various private groups. Also Chairman of The Australian Subscription Television and Radio Association
(ASTRA) and on the Committee for Economic Development of Australia’s (CEDA’s) Board of Governors.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Group during the period.

Director of QBE Insurance Limited and board member of South Sydney Rugby League Club.

Member of Remuneration Committee.

Managing Director for three years. Formerly General Manager of the Bradken business since 1997. Extensive management and
engineering experience in Australia for BHP, Australian National Industries and the Smorgon Steel Group.

None.

General information

Chairman for three years. Extensive experience in corporate roles. Formerly, Premier and Treasurer of New South Wales.

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as the Group) consisting of Bradken Limited
and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2007.

The report has been divided into five sections as follows:

The following persons were directors of Bradken Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to the date of this report:

During the year the principal activities of the Group consisted of:

manufacture and maintenance of freight rollingstock products
supply of cast, machined and fabricated components
supply of equipment and consumables to the mineral processing and quarrying markets
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Bradken Limited
Directors' report (continued)

30 June 2007

A. General information (continued)

Former directorships in the last three years

Special responsibilities

Interest in shares and rights

Phillip J Arnall, B.Com. Independent Non-Executive Director. Age 62.
Experience and expertise

Other current directorships

Former directorships in the last three years

Special responsibilities

Interest in shares

Gregory R Laurie, B.Com. Independent Non-Executive Director. Age 65.
Experience and expertise

Other current directorships

Former directorships in the last three years

Special responsibilities

Interest in shares

Vincent J O'Rourke, AM, B.Ec. Independent Non-Executive Director. Age 71.
Experience and expertise

Other current directorships

Former directorships in the last three years

Special responsibilities

Interest in shares

Director of Repco Corporation Limited.

16,325 ordinary shares in Bradken Limited.

Chairman of Kip McGrath Education Centres Limited.

Member of Audit Committee and member of Remuneration Committee.

Director for two years. Extensive experience in manufacturing and distribution industries. Formerly Finance Director of Crane
Group Limited and CFO of Rheem Australia Limited.

Independent non-executive director of Nick Scali Limited and various private groups.

Chairman of Audit Committee.

Director for three years. Extensive experience in the rail transport industry, 10 years as Chief Executive of Queensland Rail.

Chairman of the Co-operative Research Centre for Rail Engineering and Technologies, the Great Australian Trunk Rail System
and the Workplace Health and Safety Board of Queensland.

Non-executive director of Linfox Pty Ltd.

Chairman of Ludowici Limited and Chairman of Capral Aluminium Limited.

Chairman of Remuneration Committee and member of Audit Committee.

31,926 ordinary shares in Bradken Limited.

2,713,373 ordinary shares in Bradken Limited.

Director for three years. Extensive experience in mining and steel industries in management positions. Held senior management
positions with Smorgon Steel Group and Australian National Industries.

500,001 ordinary shares in Bradken Limited.

None

Managing Director.

195,364 rights over ordinary shares in Bradken Limited.
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Bradken Limited
Directors' report (continued)

30 June 2007

A. General information (continued)

Company Secretary

Meetings of directors

A B A B A B A B
N F H Greiner 9 9 1 1 - - 3 3
B W Hodges 9 9 - - - - - -
P J Arnall 9 9 1 1 2 3 3 3
V J O'Rourke 8 9 1 1 3 3 3 3
G R Laurie 9 9 1 1 3 3 - -

A – Number of meetings attended
B – Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the period

B. Corporate governance

The board of directors

Board composition
The charter states:









Full meetings of
directors

The Company Secretary is Mr B D Arnott, B.Com, CPA. Mr Arnott joined the Group in October 2005 as Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) and is responsible for finance, treasury, taxation, supply, investor relations, investments, audit and insurance. Prior to
joining Bradken Mr Arnott held various senior finance positions within OneSteel, BHP and Tubemakers.

The number of meetings of the Company's board of directors and of each board committee held during the year ended 30 June
2007, and the number of meetings attended by each director were:

Remuneration
Committee meetings

Audit Committee
meetings

Meetings of non-
executive directors

Director

The Company and the Board are committed to achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of corporate governance. This
statement outlines the main corporate governance practices in place throughout the financial year, which comply with the best
practice recommendations released by the Australian Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Council in March 2003 unless
otherwise stated.

the Company is to maintain a mix of directors from different backgrounds with complementary skills and experience both
nationally and internationally with a majority of directors having knowledge of the Company or related industries and/or
financial expertise
the Board is required to undertake an annual board performance review and consider the appropriate mix of skills required by
the Board to maximise its effectiveness and its contribution to the Group.

the Board comprise both executive and non-executive directors with a majority of non-executive directors, and one executive
director being the Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer
in recognition of the importance of independent views and the Board's role in supervising the activities of management, the
Chairman must be an independent non-executive director, the majority of the Board must be independent of management
and all directors are required to bring independent judgement to bear in their Board decision making
the Chairman is elected by the full Board and is required to meet regularly with the Managing Director

The relationship between the Board and senior management is critical to the Group's long-term success. The directors are
responsible to the shareholders for the performance of the Company in both the short and the longer term and seek to balance
sometimes competing objectives in the best interests of the Group as a whole. Their focus is to enhance the interests of
shareholders and other key stakeholders and to ensure the Group is properly managed.
Day to day management of the Group's affairs and the implementation of the corporate strategy and policy initiatives are formally
delegated by the Board to the Managing Director and senior executives.
A description of the Company's main corporate governance practices is set out below. All these practices, unless otherwise
stated, were in place for the entire year.

The Board operates in accordance with broad principles set out in its charter which is available from the corporate governance
information section of the Company website at www.bradken.com.au. The charter details the Board's composition and
responsibilities.
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Bradken Limited
Directors' report (continued)

30 June 2007

B. Corporate governance (continued)

Responsibilities
The responsibilities of the Board include:


















Board members





Directors' independence













Non-executive directors

Term of office





The Company's Constitution specifies that each non-executive director may have:

The Board reviews the independence of each Director in light of interests disclosed to the Board from time to time.

is not a material supplier to or customer of the Company or another Group member, or an officer of or otherwise associated,
directly or indirectly, with a material supplier or customer
has no material contractual relationship with the Company or another Group member other than as a director of the Company
has not served on the Board of the Company for a period which could materially interfere with the Director's ability to act in
the best interests of the Company
is free from any interest and any business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially
interfere with the director’s ability to act in the best interests of the Company.

The four non-executive directors met once during the year, in a scheduled session without the presence of the executive director,
to discuss the operation of the Board and a range of other matters.

the tenure of the Managing Director is limited to that of his Executive Office.

overseeing and monitoring:
organisational performance and the achievement of the Group's strategic goals and objectives
compliance with the Company's Code of Conduct (see page 36)
progress of major capital expenditures and other significant corporate projects including any acquisitions or divestments

monitoring financial performance including approval of the annual and half-year financial reports and liaison with the
Company's auditors

the size of the Board is conducive to effective discussion and efficient decision-making.

appointment, performance assessment and, if necessary, removal of the Managing Director

enhancing and protecting the reputation of the Group
overseeing the operation of the Group's system for compliance and risk management.

Details of the members of the Board, their experience, expertise, qualifications, term of office and independent status are set out
in the directors' report under the heading "Information on directors". As at the date of this report the Board of the Company
comprises four non-executive directors, all of whom are considered independent under the principles set out below, and the
Managing Director.

holds less than 5% of the voting shares of the Company and is not an officer of, or otherwise associated, directly or indirectly,
with a shareholder of more than 5% of the voting shares of the Company

a maximum period of 12 years service as a director, subject to re-elections every year by rotation such that 1/3 of the
directors are subject to re-election each year

within the last three years has not been a principal or employee of a material professional adviser or a material consultant to
the Company or another Group member

providing strategic guidance to the Company including contributing to the development of and approving the corporate
strategy
reviewing and approving the business plans, the annual budget and financial plans including available resources and capital
expenditure initiatives

The Board seeks to ensure that:
at any point in time, its membership represents an appropriate balance between directors with experience and knowledge of
the Group and directors with an external or fresh perspective

ratifying the appointment and/or removal and contributing to the performance assessment of the members of the senior
management team including the CFO / Company Secretary
ensuring there are effective management processes in place and approving major corporate initiatives

An independent director is a director who is not a member of management (a non-executive director) and who:

has not within the last three years been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or another Group member
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Bradken Limited
Directors' report (continued)

30 June 2007

B. Corporate governance (continued)

Commitment

Conflict of interest

Independent professional advice

Performance assessment

Corporate reporting





Board committees

The commitments of non-executive directors are considered by the Board prior to the directors' appointment to the Board of the
Company and are reviewed each year as part of the annual performance assessment.
Prior to appointment or being submitted for re-election, each non-executive director is required to specifically acknowledge that
they have and will continue to have the time to discharge their responsibilities to the Company.

There were no director related entity transactions with the Group.

that the Company’s financial reports are complete and present a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
condition and operational results of the Company and Group and are in accordance with relevant accounting standards

The Board has established a number of committees to assist in the execution of its duties and to allow detailed consideration of
complex issues. Current committees of the Board are the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. Each is comprised
entirely of non-executive directors. The committee structure and membership is reviewed on an annual basis.

Where the Board believes that a significant conflict exists for a director on a board matter, the director concerned does not
receive the relevant board papers and is not present at the meeting whilst the item is considered.

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has established a Remuneration Committee and an Audit Committee.
These Committees have written mandates and operating procedures, which are reviewed on a regular basis.

The full Board currently holds nine scheduled meetings each year, plus strategy meetings and any extraordinary meetings at such
other times as may be necessary to address any specific matters that may arise.

Directors must keep the Board advised, on an ongoing basis, of any interest that could potentially conflict with those of the Group.

The Board undertakes an annual self assessment of its collective performance, the performance of the Chairman and of its
committees. Management are invited to contribute to this appraisal process. The results and any action plans are documented.
The last assessment was undertaken in June 2007.
The Chairman undertakes an annual assessment of the performance of individual directors and meets privately with each director
to discuss this assessment.

Directors and board committees have the right, in connection with their duties and responsibilities, to seek independent
professional advice from a suitably qualified adviser at the Company's expense. Prior written approval from the Chairman is
required, but this will not be unreasonably withheld.

The Managing Director and the CFO have made the following certifications to the Board:

Additional requirements for specific reporting by the committees to the Board are addressed in the charter of the individual
committees.

Each committee has its own written charter setting out its role and responsibilities, composition, structure, membership
requirements and the manner in which the committee is to operate. All of these charters are reviewed on an annual basis and are
available on the Company website. All matters determined by the committees are submitted to the full board as recommendations
for board decisions.

The Board has established a framework for the management of the Group including a system of internal control, a business risk
management process and the establishment of appropriate ethical standards.

that the above statement is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and control which
implements the policies adopted by the Board and that the Company's risk management and internal compliance and control
is operating efficiently and effectively in all material respects.

The agenda for meetings is prepared in conjunction with the Chairman, Managing Director and Company Secretary. Standing
items include the Managing Director’s report, financial reports, strategic matters, governance and compliance. Submissions are
circulated in advance. Executives are regularly involved in Board discussions and directors have other opportunities, including
visits to business operations, for contact with a wider group of employees.
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Directors' report (continued)

30 June 2007

B. Corporate governance (continued)

Remuneration Committee

V J O'Rourke (Chairman)
N F H Greiner
P J Arnall


















Audit Committee

G R Laurie (Chairman)
P J Arnall
V J O'Rourke













The Audit Committee consists of the following non-executive directors:

review reports on the Group's financial statements and other matters, prepared by the external auditors
review any proposed provision of non-audit services by the external auditors

reviewing the personal development plans for senior executives to maintain a pool of capable senior management

The Remuneration Committee consists of the following non-executive directors:

reviewing and approving remuneration policies including proposed short and long term incentives, superannuation,
recruitment, redundancy/termination and other major personnel practices that will attract, motivate and retain high quality
employees

The Audit Committee has appropriate financial expertise and all members are financially literate and have an appropriate
understanding of the businesses and markets in which the Group operates.

recommending to the Board the entitlements under incentive plans for the Managing Director, including linkages to specific
goals and objectives. Approve entitlements for senior executives reporting to that position
recommending to the Board any service contracts for the Managing Director and approve service contracts for senior
executives reporting to that position

overseeing the planning and development of business continuity, crisis management and quality and safety management
systems
undertaking any special projects delegated by the Board or deemed necessary by the Committee

Further information on directors' and executive remuneration is set out in the directors' report under the heading "Remuneration
Report".

ensure the independence of the external auditors

Details of these directors attendance at Audit Committee meetings are set out in the directors' report on page 31.

consider the competence and assess the performance of the external auditors

ensure there is an appropriate process for the identification and management of business risks

reviewing the development of management succession planning to ensure ongoing professional management of the
Company and the development of the individuals

The Remuneration Committee's terms of reference include:

recommending to the Board the total employment cost of the Managing Director and approving the total employment cost of
senior executives reporting to that position. The total cost being base pay, short and long term incentives (including shares
and options), superannuation and other benefits

overview the effectiveness of the internal audit function

assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's internal control processes

review and assess the integrity of the financial statements of the Group

The Audit Committee operates in accordance with a charter which is available on the Company website. The main
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to:

assess the suitability of the Group's accounting policies and processes

liaise with the external auditors on the conduct of the external audit

Details of these directors attendance at Remuneration Committee meetings are set out in the directors' report on page 31.
The Remuneration Committee operates in accordance with its charter which is available on the Company website. The
Remuneration Committee advises the Board on remuneration and incentive policies and practices generally, and makes specific
recommendations on remuneration packages and other terms of employment for the executive directors, other senior executives
and non-executive directors.

act as an interface between the Board and the external auditors

reviewing the Company’s development of human resource plans, training, workplace safety and environment systems
designed to enhance corporate and individual performance
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Bradken Limited
Directors' report (continued)

30 June 2007

B. Corporate governance (continued)














External auditors

Risk assessment and management

The environment, health and safety management system (EHSMS)











Bradken is committed to managing risk to protect our people, the environment, company assets, the community and our
reputation. This risk-based system helps the Group operate effectively and efficiently, achieve business objectives, ensure
reliable reporting and comply with applicable laws and regulations.

implement a corporate environmental management system that is independently certified to international standards ISO
14001.

An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors, including a break-down of fees for non-audit services, is provided in the directors'
report and in note 29 to the financial statements. It is the policy of the external auditors to provide an annual declaration of their
independence to the Audit Committee.

implement the Bradken 21 Step Safety plan at all sites

encourage the adoption of similar standards by the Group's principal suppliers and contractors.

continually assess and improve the impact of its operations on the environment
encourage employees to actively participate in the management of environmental and OH&S issues
work with trade associations representing the Group's businesses to raise standards
use energy and other resources as efficiently as practicable, and

monitor its systems compliance with all relevant OH&S and environmental legislation

The Group recognises the importance of environmental and occupational health and safety (OH&S) issues and is committed to
the highest levels of performance. To help meet this objective the EHSMS was established to facilitate the systematic
identification of environmental and OH&S issues and to ensure they are managed in a structured way. This system has been
operating for a number of years and allows the Company to:

The external auditor is required to attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer shareholder questions about the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the audit report.

review and monitor related party transactions and assess their propriety

assesses the suitability of the Company's financial accounting policies, practices and procedures and the compliance with
regulatory requirements

ensure a process is in place to monitor the Group's compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Audit Committee meets with the external auditors on a regular basis. It reviews its performance and effectiveness periodically
and reviews its charter and makes recommendations to the Board on its charter annually.

report to the Board on matters relevant to the Committee's role and responsibilities.

The Board implements this policy by overseeing the establishment and implementation of the risk management system, reviewing
the effectiveness of the company's implementation of that system and ensuring appropriate communication with shareholders.
Further information on the Bradken Risk Policy can be found under the corporate governance information section of the Company
website at www.bradken.com.au.
Not all aspects of risk management can be formalised and Bradken places considerable reliance on the skill, experience and
judgement of its people to make risk based decisions within the policy framework, and to communicate openly on all risk related
matters.

The Audit Committee has authority, within the scope of its responsibilities, to seek any information it requires from any employee
or external party.

The Company policy is to appoint external auditors who clearly demonstrate quality and independence. The performance of the
external auditor is reviewed annually. PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor in 2005. It is
PricewaterhouseCoopers policy to rotate audit engagement partners on listed companies at least every five years.

receives regular reports from management and the external auditors
In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Audit Committee:

provides the external auditors with a clear line of direct communication at any time to either the Chairman of the Audit
Committee or the Chairman of the Board.

reviews the processes the CEO and the CFO have in place to support their certifications to the Board
reviews any significant disagreements between the auditors and management, irrespective of whether they have been
resolved
meets separately with the external auditors at least twice a year without the presence of management
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Code of conduct





Continuous disclosure and shareholder communication

In summary, the Continuous Disclosure Policy operates as follows:












All directors, managers and employees are expected to act with the utmost integrity, objectivity and in compliance with the letter
and spirit of the law and Company policies, striving at all times to enhance the reputation and performance of the Group. Every
employee has a nominated supervisor to whom they may refer any issues arising from their employment.
The Group has advised each director, manager and employee that they must comply with the Company's Whistleblower Policy.
The Policy may be viewed on the Company’s website, and it covers the following:

ensuring that the Company complies with its obligations to protect the reporter of any such behaviour.

the full text of notices of meetings and associated explanatory material are placed on the Company’s website.

encouraging employees to report any behaviour that may be dishonest, fraudulent, corrupt, illegal, in breach of
Commonwealth or State Legislation, unethical, improper, unsafe or any other behaviour that may cause financial or non-
financial loss to the Group or would be otherwise detrimental to the interests of the Group

Recently acquired operations are currently implementing environmental management systems. The Group continues to
implement projects that improve the Company's environmental performance and to address any community concerns in the
vicinity of manufacturing sites. Information on compliance with significant environmental regulations is set out in section E of this
report on page 48.

All shareholders receive a copy of the Company's annual report. In addition the Company seeks to provide opportunities for
shareholders to participate through electronic means. All Company announcements, media briefings, details of Company
meetings and press releases are available on the Company's website. All of the above information is made available on the
Company’s website within one day of public release, and is emailed to all shareholders who lodge their email contact details with
the Company. Information on lodging email addresses with the Company is available on the Company’s website.

the Chairman, the Managing Director and the Company Secretary comprise the Disclosure Committee. The responsibilities
of the Disclosure Committee include:

The Board provides shareholders with information using a comprehensive Continuous Disclosure Policy which includes identifying
matters, that a reasonable person would expect, that may have a material effect on the price of the Company’s securities,
notifying each matter to the ASX, posting them on the Company’s website, and issuing media releases. Full details of the policy
are available on the Company’s website.

The Company also has a Securities Trading Policy (available on the Company's website) which details the insider trading
provisions of the Corporations Act 2001. In summary, trading of the Company's shares is restricted to 30 days after the release of
the Company's half-year and annual results to the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) and the Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

ensuring the Company complies with its disclosure obligations

all announcements made to the market, and related information including information provided to analysts or the media
during briefings, are placed on the Company’s website after they are released to the ASX

determining and authorising what information can or should be disclosed to the market
liaising with the Board where necessary

the Company Secretary is responsible for all communications with the ASX. Such continuous disclosure matters are advised
to the ASX on the day they are discovered, and all senior executives must follow a ‘Continuous Disclosure Discovery’
process, which involves monitoring all areas of the Group's internal and external environment
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C. Review of operations

(i)

* EPS is based on the number of shares at the end of the period

** Net operating and investing cash flows before borrowing costs & income tax

*** Net operating and investing cash flow

(ii)
 Sales revenue of $639.7m, up 16.8% on FY06
 EBITDA of $102.6m, up 32.6%
 NPAT of $49.1m, up 44.8%
 Net operating and investing cash outflow of $28.7m
 Gearing (net debt/EBITDA) of 1.88 times
 Final dividend of 17.0 cents per share fully franked, payable on 4 September 2007

(iii)

 Mining - sales revenue of $237.9m, up $25.8m or 12% on FY06

 Mineral Processing - sales revenue of $94.0m, down $11.9m or 11% on FY06

Financial Overview
FY07 FY06 Variance
$m $m %

Sales 639.7 547.8 17
EBITDA 102.6 77.4 32
NPAT 49.1 33.9 45
Earnings per share* (cents) 46.3 32.0 45
Dividend per share (cents) 31.5 21.0 50
Cashflow ** -0.3 62.9
Cashflow*** -28.7 44.4
ROFE (EBITA) 28.8% 25.7%
ROE 33.5% 27.8%
Net Debt / EBITDA (ratio) 1.88 1.49
Interest cover (times) 6.6 5.2

Financial Highlights

Sales revenue for the twelve months to June 2007 of $639.7m was $91.9m or 17% higher than for the twelve months to June
2006. Rail showed the strongest revenue growth increasing 15% from FY06, continued increases in tonnes mined saw Mining
increase 12%, Industrial (excluding acquisitions) was up 2% while Mineral Processing was down 11% on FY06 sales levels.
Trading for the Wundowie acquisition (November 2006), the Firth Rixson Castings acquisition (December 2006) and the Boogan
Implements acquisition (April 2007) accounted for $52m of the revenue growth.

EBITDA of $102.6m was achieved, $25.2m or 32% higher than the corresponding period. Growth in EBITDA was achieved via
higher volumes of tonnes mined, the expansion of the EBITDA margin and the impact of acquisitions during 2007. The EBITDA
to sales margin of 16.0% was well up on the corresponding period of 14.1%.

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary equity holders (NPAT) of $49.1m was $15.2m or 45% ahead of the corresponding
period, resulting in earnings per share of 46.3 cents (based on number of shares at 30 June 2007).

The Directors have declared a final, fully franked, dividend of 17.0 cents, compared to 11.5 cents in the corresponding period last
year, payable on the 4th September 2007 with a record date of 21st August 2007. This brings the dividend for the full year to 31.5
cents per share, a payout ratio of 68%. The directors have suspended the dividend reinvestment plan.

Strong operating cash flow helped fund increased capital expenditure, acquisitions and higher dividend levels. Net debt increased
by $78.0m to $192.4m mainly due to a total outlay on acquisitions of $76m and capital expenditure of $41.6m. Gearing remains
sound at 2 times EBITDA and Net Debt to Net Debt plus Equity of 55%.

Business Summary

Continued growth in mining production volumes particularly for iron ore and coal underpinned growth in mining consumables, with
crawler shoes the standout performer on the back of a world wide increase in demand for mining consumables and equipment.

Copper and gold production volumes in Australia were lower in 2007 and this combined with the rundown of inventories and
consignment stock at some mines saw revenue levels reduce in 2007. Gross margin % continued to improve, largely offsetting
the impact of lower volumes.
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C. Review of operations (continued)

(iii)

 Rail - sales revenue of $190.4m, up $24.3m or 15% on FY06

 Industrial - sales revenue of $87.6m, up $23.9m or 38% on FY06

 Power and Cement - sales revenue of $29.8m

(iv)

Dividends
Dividends paid to members during the financial year were as follows:

2007 2006

$'000 $'000

12,198 9,457

15,381 9,936

27,579 19,393

Significant changes in the state of affairs

(a)
(b)
(c)

2007
$'000

(d)


347

347
Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

Likely developments and expected results of operations

Significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the financial year were the:

acquisition of Firth Rixson Castings Ltd on 11 December 2006
acquisition of the assets of Boogan Implements Company on 30 March 2007

issue of 255,007 fully paid ordinary shares between $1.41 and $2.35 on exercise of rights under the
Performance Rights Plan.

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2007 of 14.5 cents (2006: 9.5 cents) per fully
paid share paid 13 March 2007 (2006: 30 March 2006)

In addition to the above dividends, since the end of the financial year the directors have recommended the payment of a fully
franked final dividend of $18,032,000 (17.0 cents per fully paid ordinary share) to be paid on 4 September 2007 out of retained
profits at 30 June 2007.

acquisition of Wundowie Foundry Pty Ltd on 14 November 2006

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2006 of 11.5 cents (2005: 9.2 cents) per fully paid
share paid on 13 October 2006 (2005: 12 October 2005)

increase in contributed equity of $347,000 (from $83,337,000 to $83,684,000) as a result of:

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event
of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the
Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years.

Further disclosure on likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected results of operations have not been
included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group.

Business Summary (continued)

The acquisition of Wundowie (Nov-06) and Boogan Implement business (April-07) boosted the Industrial result, providing $22.4m
of the revenue increase. On a like for like business basis (excluding these acquisitions) sales of $65.2 were $1.5m or 2% higher
than FY06.

The new segment of Power & Cement represents the Firth Rixson Castings business in the UK that was acquired in December
2006. The sales of $29.8m in FY07 represents the trading from the 11 December 2006 to the 30 June 2007.

Strong sales of iron ore wagons to Rio Tinto along with higher refurbishment and parts sales, offset lower volume of bogies and
general freight work, resulting in a strong increase in revenue in 2007.

We are confident that Bradken’s main drivers of growth, being mining volumes and rail demand, expansion of EBITDA margin,
and acquisitions, will continue to provide a platform for sustainable long-term earnings growth.

Outlook
Bradken is confident of continued growth in China and longer term strength in the resource cycle and believes it is well placed to
continue to benefit from the growth in these mining related markets. At the same time the market for rail wagons remains at high
levels as mine capacities continue to increase and general rail freight expands.

The Company continues to invest capital for additional capacity and cost reductions, and to look for bolt on or larger acquisitions
to further complement the current product offering and to improve the overall quality of earnings.
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D. Remuneration report

The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:
(a) Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
(b) Details of remuneration
(c) Service agreements
(d) Share-based compensation
(e) Additional information - unaudited

(a) Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration (audited)

















Non executive directors

(i) Directors' fees

attracts and retains high calibre executives.

focuses on sustained growth in shareholder wealth, consisting of dividends and growth in share price, and delivering
constant return on assets as well as focusing the executive on key non-financial drivers of value

The information provided under headings (a) to (d) includes the remuneration disclosures that are required under the Accounting
Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures . These disclosures have been transferred from the financial report and have
been audited. The disclosures in section (e) below are additional disclosures required by the Corporations Act 2001 and the
Corporations Regulations 2001 which have not been audited.

Alignment to shareholders' interests:

competitiveness and reasonableness
acceptability to shareholders
performance linkage / alignment of executive compensation
transparency

The objective of the Group's executive reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and appropriate for
the results delivered. The framework aligns executive reward with achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of value
for shareholders, and conforms with market best practice for delivery of reward. The Board ensures that executive reward
satisfies the following key criteria for good reward governance practices:

In consultation with external remuneration consultants, the Group has structured an executive remuneration framework that is
market competitive and complementary to the reward strategy of the Group.

has economic profit as a core component of plan design

Alignment to program participants' interests:
rewards capability and experience

Performance linked remuneration includes both short-term and long-term incentives and is designed to reward executive directors
and senior executives for meeting or exceeding their financial and personal objectives. The short-term incentive (STI) is an “at
risk” bonus provided in the form of cash, while the long-term incentive (LTI) is provided as rights over ordinary shares of Bradken
Limited under the rules of the Performance Rights Plan.

reflects competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth
provides a clear structure for earning rewards

Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the directors.
Non-executive directors' fees and payments are reviewed annually by the Board. The Board also uses the advice of independent
remuneration consultants to ensure non-executive directors' fees and payments are appropriate and in line with the market.

Directors’ base fees are presently $96,000 per annum. The Chairman receives up to twice the base fee, currently $192,000 per
annum. Non-executive directors do not receive performance related remuneration. Directors’ fees cover all main board activities
and membership of any board committee.

capital management.

The current base remuneration was last reviewed with effect from 1 October 2006. Total aggregate remuneration for all non-
executive directors, last voted upon by shareholders in April 2004, is not to exceed $600,000 per annum and actual amounts
payable to individual directors are determined after considering advice from external advisors and with reference to fees paid to
other non-executive directors of comparable companies.

provides recognition for contribution.
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(a) Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration (audited) (continued)

(ii) Non-Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan

Executive pay





(i) Base pay and benefits

(ii) Short-term incentives

(iii) Long-term incentives - Performance Rights Plan

(b) Details of remuneration (audited)








B D Arnott - CFO and Company Secretary

The executive pay and reward framework has three components:

long-term incentives through participation in the Performance Rights Plan.

S D Burraston - General Manager Rail

Structured as a total employment cost package which may be delivered as a combination of cash and prescribed non-financial
benefits at the executives' discretion and includes contributions to employee superannuation funds.

Details of the remuneration of the directors and the key management personnel (as defined in AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures) of Bradken Limited and the Bradken Limited Group are set out in the following tables:
The key management personnel of Bradken Limited and the Group are the directors of Bradken Limited (see page 29 above), the
Chief Financial Officer and the General Managers of the Bradken business units who report directly to the Managing Director.
This includes the 5 Group executives who received the highest remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2007. The executives
are:

At the end of the financial year an assessment is made of the actual performance of the Group, the relevant business unit and the
individual targets set at the beginning of the financial year. A percentage of bonus is awarded depending on performance. No
bonus is awarded where performance falls below the minimum growth target set for the financial year.

Executives are offered a competitive base pay that comprises the fixed component of pay and rewards. External remuneration
consultants provide analysis and advice to ensure base pay is set to reflect the market for a comparable role. Base pay for senior
executives is reviewed annually to ensure the executive's pay is competitive with the market. An executive's pay is also reviewed
on promotion.

The Group's long-term incentive, the Performance Rights Plan, focuses on rewarding for long term growth and the retention of
key people. Information on the Performance Rights Plan is set out on page 43.

A J Allen - General Manager Industrial

The Remuneration Committee recommends the bonus incentive to be paid to the Managing Director for approval by the Board.
For other senior executives the Managing Director recommends the bonus incentive to be paid, and seeks approval from the
Remuneration Committee.

C Burdon - General Manager Power & Cement (from 11 December 2006)

short-term performance incentives

Non-executive directors may elect to have a percentage of their annual fixed directors’ fees provided in shares under the Non-
Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan (NED plan). Participation in the plan is voluntary.

base pay and benefits including superannuation

Each year the Board sets the job goals for the Managing Director. The senior executives job goals are set and managed by the
Managing Director. The job goals are focused on the growth of the business and generally include measures relating to the
Group, the relevant business unit, and the individual, and include financial, people, customer and strategy and risk measures.
The measures are chosen to directly align the individual's reward to the goals of the Group and to its strategy and performance.
The financial performance objectives are “Net profit after tax” and "EBITDA" compared to previous year results. The non-financial
objectives vary with position and responsibility and include measures such as achieving strategic outcomes, safety and
environmental performance, customer satisfaction and staff development.

The combination of these comprises the executive's total remuneration.

E P Sheridan - General Manager Mining
B J Ward - General Manager Mineral Processing

The cash bonuses are dependent on the satisfaction of performance conditions as set out in the section headed Short-term
incentives above, and the Performance Rights (long term incentives) are not granted unless the conditions set out in Note 39 38
are satisfied. All other elements of remuneration are not directly related to performance.
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(b) Details of remuneration (audited) (continued)

Key management personnel of Bradken Limited and of the Group

Short-term employee benefits Post-employment benefits Share-
based

payment

Cash
salary and

fees
$

Cash
bonus

$

Non-
monetary
benefits

$

Super-
annuation

$

Retirement
benefits

$

Shares /
Rights

$
Total

$
Non-executive directors
N F H Greiner - Chairman 139,650 - - - - 46,550 186,200

P J Arnall 94,419 - - - - - 94,419

G R Laurie 4,799 - - 72,094 - 17,526 94,419

V J O'Rourke - - - 70,814 - 23,605 94,419

238,868 - - 142,908 - 87,681 469,457

Executive directors
B W Hodges 599,706 750,000 - 102,076 - 247,800 1,699,582

Other key management
A J Allen 168,535 81,112 29,622 76,919 - 59,978 416,166

B D Arnott 235,452 207,537 - 97,490 - 62,735 603,214

143,321 81,407 - 1,531 - 18,802 245,061

S D Burraston 172,469 100,000 27,403 29,581 - 61,016 390,469

E P Sheridan 256,396 214,233 1,228 45,532 - 64,201 581,590

B J Ward 179,529 71,575 10,088 37,900 - 51,312 350,404

1,994,276 1,505,864 68,341 533,937 - 653,525 4,755,943

Short-term employee benefits Post-employment benefits Share-
based

payment

Cash
salary and

fees
$

Cash
bonus

$

Non-
monetary
benefits

$

Super-
annuation

$

Retirement
benefits

$

Shares /
Rights

$
Total

$
Non-executive directors
N F H Greiner - Chairman 124,950 - - - - 41,650 166,600

P J Arnall 88,506 - - - - - 88,506

G R Laurie 56,840 - - 5,116 - 26,550 88,506

V J O'Rourke 66,380 - - - - 22,126 88,506

336,676 - - 5,116 - 90,326 432,118

Executive directors
B W Hodges 345,445 350,000 15,777 185,079 - 115,038 1,011,339

Other key management
A J Allen 139,256 100,000 34,968 43,603 - 29,075 346,902

137,720 105,000 - 66,895 - 24,144 333,759

S D Burraston 142,816 80,000 61,806 26,274 - 30,671 341,567

82,588 - - 17,512 110,324 - 210,424

E P Sheridan 159,834 100,000 17,666 47,237 - 29,881 354,618

B J Ward 148,315 100,000 15,271 28,427 - 24,541 316,554

1,492,650 835,000 145,488 420,143 110,324 343,676 3,347,281

C Burdon
From 11.12.06 to 30.6.07

Name

Sub-total
non-executive directors

Sub-total
non-executive directors

2006

Totals

B D Arnott *
(from 26/10/2005 - 30/6/2006)

A J Poole *
(from 1/7/2005 - 11/11/2005)

* A J Poole resigned during the year as CFO and Company Secretary and left the Company on 11 November 2005. B D Arnott
replaced Mr Poole and commenced employment with the Company on 26 October 2005.

Totals

Name

2007
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(c) Service agreements (audited)

B W Hodges, Managing Director



A J Allen, General Manager Industrial



B D Arnott, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary



C Burdon, General Manager Power & Cement



S D Burraston, General Manager Rail



E P Sheridan, General Manager Mining



B J Ward, General Manager Mineral Processing



(d) Share-based compensation (audited)

Non-Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan

The contract can be terminated on three months notice by either party, or immediately in the case of gross misconduct.

Contract of employment with Bradken Resources Pty Ltd dated 7th January 2000 with no prescribed duration.
The contract can be terminated on three months notice by either party, or immediately in the case of gross misconduct.

Contract of employment with Bradken Resources Pty Ltd dated 22nd September 2004 with no prescribed duration.

Non-executive directors may elect to have a proportion of their quarterly directors’ fees provided as shares under the NED Plan.
Participation in the plan is voluntary.
Non-executive directors are not able to sell or otherwise dispose of the shares until the earliest of 10 years after acquisition or
when the non-executive director ceases to be a director of the Company (except in very limited circumstances). During this
period the shares are subject to a holding lock.
During the financial period shares issued under the plan were purchased on market.

The contract can be terminated either by either party providing six months written notice, or immediately in the case of gross
misconduct. If Bradken Resources Pty Ltd terminates employment, other than for misconduct, then a severance payment will
be made in accordance with Bradken's redundancy policy in place immediately before termination.

Contract of employment with Bradken Resources Pty Ltd dated 7 July 2006 with no prescribed duration.
The contract can be terminated on three months notice by either party, or immediately in the case of gross misconduct.

The contract can be terminated on three months notice by either party, or immediately in the case of gross misconduct.

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Managing Director and the other key management personnel are formalised
in service agreements. Each of these agreements provide for the provision of performance-related cash bonuses, other benefits
including, but not limited to, motor vehicles and participation, when eligible, in the Bradken Performance Rights Plan. Other major
provisions of the agreements relating to remuneration are set out below.

Contract of employment with Bradken Resources Pty Ltd dated 2nd July 2004 with no prescribed duration.

Contract of employment with Bradken Resources Pty Ltd dated 6th June 1995 with no prescribed duration.

Contract of employment with Bradken UK Pty Ltd dated 30 November 2006 with no prescribed duration.
The contract can be terminated on twelve months notice by the company, six months notice by the exececutive, or
immediately in the case of gross misconduct.

The contract can be terminated by either party providing three months written notice, or immediately in the case of gross
misconduct.

Contract of employment with Bradken Resources Pty Ltd dated 3rd July 2006 with no prescribed duration.
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(d) Share-based compensation (audited) (continued)

2007 2006 2007 2006

Directors of Bradken Limited
N F H Greiner 3,936 - $5.85 -
N F H Greiner 2,125 - $9.68 -
N F H Greiner - 6,851 - $2.92
N F H Greiner - 4,516 - $4.43
G R Laurie 2,510 - $5.85 -
G R Laurie 937 - $9.68 -
G R Laurie - 2,878 - $4.43
V J O'Rourke 2,091 - $5.85 -
V J O'Rourke 1,090 - $9.68 -
V J O'Rourke - 3,639 - $2.92
V J O'Rourke - 2,399 - $4.43

Rights

Dividends, changes in share price, and return of capital are included in the TSR calculation which is the only performance criteria
assessed for the LTI scheme.

23 February 2006

23 February 2006

Number of shares
purchased

during the year

24 August 2005

19 September 2006

24 August 2005

20 February 2007

50

20 February 2007

0

The TSR performance conditions in relation to the grants issued are:

Target

The Company’s TSR does not meet performance of the median Company in ASX Small Cap

Mr Brian Hodges, being the only Executive Director of the Company, is the only Director entitled to participate in the PRP. If any
other Director is to participate in the PRP, the Company will seek shareholder approval required by the Listing Rules.
The performance conditions are based on the relative total shareholder return (“TSR”) of the Company measured against other
companies in the ASX Small Cap Industrials index during the performance period. TSR measures the total return on investment
of a share taking into account capital appreciation, capital return and dividend income.

Weighted average
price of shares
purchased

Dates of share issuesName

19 September 2006

The appropriate number of shares are purchased on a semi-annual basis. If for legal or other reasons shares are not issued,
each non-executive director is provided with an equivalent cash amount.

The terms and conditions of each grant of Rights affecting remuneration in the previous, this or future reporting periods are as
follows:

Pro rata between 50% and 100%
(2% increase for each higher ranking)

100

The Performance Rights Plan (PRP) is the Company’s long-term incentive (LTI) scheme for selected key executives. The
Managing Director recommends the list of executives who are entitled to participate in this scheme and seeks approval of the list
from the Board. Under the PRP, eligible executives may be granted Performance Rights (each being a right to acquire a share,
subject to the satisfaction of exercise conditions) on terms and conditions determined by the Board. If the exercise conditions are
satisfied, the Performance Rights may be exercised and the shares issued and delivered to the executive. The Board may
impose restrictions on the disposal of the shares and implement procedures to enforce the restrictions.
The rules of the PRP provide that the Board may determine a price that is payable to exercise a Performance Right, or that no
amount is payable by the executive upon exercise of the Right.
If any additional persons become entitled to participate in the PRP and their participation requires approval under Chapter 10 of
the Listing Rules, they will not participate in the PRP until shareholder approval is received pursuant to Listing Rule 10.14.

19 September 2006
20 February 2007

In assessing whether the performance hurdles have been met, the Remuneration Committee receives independent data from an
investment bank which provides both the Company's TSR from previous financial years and that of the ASX Small Cap
companies. The Company's performance against the hurdle is then determined with each Company in the ASX Small Cap
companies and Bradken being ranked in order of TSR in results from previous financial years. The Company's percentile ranking
is determined by aggregating the weighting within the ASX Small Cap companies (based on market capitalisation) of each
company ranked below Bradken. The method of assessment was chosen as it provides the Committee with an objective means
of measuring the Company's performance against its peer group. Once vested the performance rights remain exercisable for a
period of ten years.

Percentage of Rights available
in given year to vest

The Company’s TSR equals or exceeds performance of the median Company in ASX Small Cap

The Company’s TSR ranked in third quartile of companies in ASX Small Cap

23 February 2006

The Company’s TSR ranked in fourth quartile of companies in ASX Small Cap
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D. Remuneration report (continued)

(d) Share-based compensation (audited) (continued)

Exercise
price

Fair value
per Right

$0.00 $1.57

$0.00 $1.41

$0.00 $2.35

$0.00 $2.80

$0.00 $3.44

$0.00 $4.70

Number of Rights granted and vested during the year

2007 2006 2007 2006

Directors of Bradken Limited
B W Hodges 107,731 85,616 65,206 24,444
Other key management personnel of Bradken Limited and of the Group
A J Allen 25,118 22,417 17,272 6,533
B D Arnott 31,135 30,822 10,274 -
C Burdon 12,001 - - -
S D Burraston 24,493 24,102 18,069 6,690
E P Sheridan 28,012 23,452 17,614 6,530
B J Ward 21,731 19,757 14,302 5,143

30/10/2006 * 10 years from Test Date

18 November 2005

10 years from Test Date30 June 2005

18 Aug 04 to 30 Jun 05,
1 Jul 05 to 30 Jun 06,
1 Jul 06 to 30 Jun 07

18 Aug 04 to 30 Jun 05,
1 Jul 05 to 30 Jun 06,
1 Jul 06 to 30 Jun 07

1 Jul 05 to 30 Jun 06,
1 Jul 06 to 30 Jun 07,
1 Jul 07 to 30 Jun 08

10 years from Test Date

The assessed fair value at grant date of Rights granted to the individuals is allocated equally over the financial periods in which
the Rights may vest, and the amount is included in the remuneration tables above. Fair values at grant date are determined using
a Black Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the Right, the vesting and
performance criteria, the impact of dilution, the non-tradeable nature of the Right, the share price at grant date and expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the Right.

Number of Rights
vested

during the year *

Number of Rights
granted

during the year

10 years from Test Date

1 Jul 06 to 30 Jun 07,
1 Jul 07 to 30 Jun 08

* Changes to the Performance Rights Plan
Changes to the Performance Rights Plan have been made since 1 July 2006. For issues before 1 July 2006 a maximum one third
may become exercisable for each of the three financial years on which the performance conditions were tested. For grants made
from 1 July 2006 no retesting will be allowed and testing will take place in respect of a 3 year performance period and can only
vest after the end of the 3 year performance period.

Result announcement y/e 09

Result announcement y/e 0930/03/2007 * 10 years from Test Date

30/10/2006 * 10 years from Test Date

Performance PeriodExpiry Date

To ensure no material disadvantage to the existing scheme participants and to achieve Bradken’s key objective of retaining
valuable employees, there is a transition to the new vesting rules for grants made from 1 July 2006.

Grant Date

18 August 2004

1 Jul 06 to 30 Jun 09

1 Jul 06 to 30 Jun 09

Rights granted under the PRP carry no dividend or voting rights.
Details of Rights over ordinary shares in the Company provided as remuneration to each director of Bradken Limited and each of
the key management personnel are set out below. When exercisable, each Right is convertible into one ordinary share of
Bradken Limited. Further information on the Rights is set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

* For the year end 30 June 2006 the number of rights shown as vested was adjusted as the rights previously shown as having
vested in that period did not actually vest until after the test date of 24 August 2006. The number of rights that actually vested in
the year end 30 June 2006 has been restated.

Name

7 August 2007,
Result announcement y/e 08

Test Date
(date vested and exercisable)
24 August 2005,
24 August 2006,
7 August 2007

24 August 2005,
24 August 2006,
7 August 2007

24 August 2006,
7 August 2007,
Result announcement y/e 08
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30 June 2007

D. Remuneration report (continued)

(d) Share-based compensation (audited) (continued)

Expiry
Date

Exercise
price

Price of
shares on
grant date

Estimated
volatility

Risk free
interest

rate

Dividend
yield

30/06/2007 $0.00 $2.66 90% 5.44% 0.00%
30/06/2007 $0.00 $2.80 90% 5.17% 0.00%
30/06/2008 $0.00 $4.15 90% 5.35% 0.00%
30/06/2008 $0.00 $6.00 90% 5.73% 0.00%
30/06/2009 $0.00 $6.00 90% 5.73% 0.00%
30/06/2009 $0.00 $8.81 90% 6.02% 0.00%

Shares provided on exercise of Performance Rights

2007 2006

Directors of Bradken Limited
B W Hodges 65,206 24,444
Other key management personnel of Bradken Limited and of the Group
A J Allen 17,272 6,533
B D Arnott 10,274 -
S D Burraston 24,759 -
A J Poole - 7,088
E P Sheridan 17,614 6,530
B J Ward 14,302 5,143

5 September 2006

5 September 2006
5 September 2006

No amounts were payable on the exercise of Rights during the period.

5 September 2006

30 March 2007

The following factors and assumptions have been used in determining the fair value of Rights for the issues granted:

18 November 2005

Number of ordinary
shares issued on
exercise of Rights
during the year

Date of
exercise
of Rights

30 June 2005

18 August 2004

30 October 2006

Name

5 September 2006

5 September 2006

Grant Date

Details of ordinary shares in the Company provided as a result of the exercise of Performance Rights to the Managing Director of
Bradken Limited and each of the key management personnel of the Group are set out below.

30 October 2006
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D. Remuneration report (continued)

(e) Additional information - unaudited

Cash
bonus

Paid /
Forfeited

%

Financial
year

granted

Vested in
prior years

% *

Vested in
current
year
% *

Forfeited
(A)
%

Financial
years in
which

Rights may
vest

Minimum
total value
of grant yet
to vest (B)

$
78 / Nil 2007 - - 30/06/2008 -

30/06/2009
30/06/2010

2006 - 33 - 30/06/2008 -
30/06/2009

2005 26 41 - 30/06/2008 -
200 / Nil 2007 - - 30/06/2008 -

30/06/2009
30/06/2010

2006 - 33 - 30/06/2008 -
30/06/2009

C Burdon 148 / Nil 2007 - - 30/06/2009 -
165 / Nil 2007 - - 30/06/2008 -

30/06/2009
30/06/2010

2006 - 33 - 30/06/2008 -
30/06/2009

2005 26 41 - 30/06/2008 -
200 / Nil 2007 - - 30/06/2008 -

30/06/2009
30/06/2010

2006 - 33 - 30/06/2008 -
30/06/2009

2005 26 41 - 30/06/2008 -
158 / Nil 2007 - - 30/06/2008 -

30/06/2009
30/06/2010

2006 - 33 - 30/06/2008 -
30/06/2009

2005 26 41 - 30/06/2008 -
78 / Nil 2007 - - 30/06/2008 -

30/06/2009
30/06/2010

2006 - 33 - 30/06/2008 -
30/06/2009

2005 26 41 - 30/06/2008 -

A=

B=

C=

Maximum
total value of
grant yet to
vest (C)

$

For each cash bonus and grant of Rights included in the tables on page 41, pages 43 to 45 and page 47, the percentage of the
available bonus or Right that was paid, or that vested, in the financial year, and the percentage that was forfeited because the
person did not meet the performance criteria is set out below. The Rights vest over a period up to three years, provided the
vesting conditions are met (see page 43 above). No part of cash bonuses forfeited are payable in future years.

The overall level of executive reward takes into account the performance of the Group over a number of years, with greater
emphasis given to the current and prior year.

Name

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration: relationship between remuneration
and Company performance

Rights

68,790

B J Ward

The % forfeited in the year is nil as the Rights that failed to vest in this period may vest in future periods if performance
criteria are met.

232,522

128,411

167,295

B D Arnott

S D Burraston

B W Hodges

268,763

The maximum value of rights yet to vest is not determinable as it depends on the market price of shares of Bradken Limited
on the Australian Stock Exchange at the date the right is exercised. The maximum values presented above are based on the
closing share price at 30 June 2007 of $10.70.

89,473

333,145

299,728

159,912

219,864

171,928

87,376

262,075

140,930

E P Sheridan

1,152,722

326,949

610,724

A J Allen

Details of cash remuneration: cash bonuses and Rights

The minimum value of Rights yet to vest is nil as the performance criteria may not be met and consequently the Right may
not vest.

87,344

* For the year end 30 June 2006 the percentage of rights shown as vested was incorrect and have been restated, refer note (d) above.
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Bradken Limited
Directors' report (continued)

30 June 2007

D. Remuneration report (continued)

(e) Additional information - unaudited (continued)

Details of cash remuneration: cash bonuses and Rights (continued)

Share based compensation: Rights
Further details relating to rights are set out below.

A
Remuneration
consisting

of
Rights

B
Value at
grant
date
$

C
Value at
exercise
date
$

D
Value at
lapse
date
$

E
Total of
columns
B to D
$

14.4% 86,406 31,377 - 117,783
10.4% 107,104 24,144 - 131,248
7.7% 56,405 - - 56,405
15.6% 84,256 42,462 - 126,718
14.6% 370,595 124,634 - 495,229
11.0% 96,361 32,184 - 128,545
14.6% 74,755 26,357 - 101,112

A=
B=

C=
D=

Shares under Performance Rights
Unissued shares of Bradken Limited under Performance Right at the date of this report are as follows:

Expiry date Exercise price
Number of shares

under right
Ten years from Test Date
Ten years from Test Date
Ten years from Test Date
Ten years from Test Date
Ten years from Test Date
Ten years from Test Date

Shares issued on exercise of Rights

Issue price of shares Number of shares
issued

Nil

0.00
0.00

Nil

0.00
70,317

30 October 2006

0.00 0
0.00 0

The following ordinary shares of Bradken Limited were issued during the year ended 30 June 2007 on exercise of Rights granted
under the Performance Rights Plan No further shares have been issued since that date.

18 November 2005
30 June 2005

30 October 2006

18 August 2004

148,023

36,667

Date Rights granted

30 March 2007

All Rights expire on the earlier of their expiry date, their exercise, their failure to meet exercise conditions or termination of the
employee’s employment. In addition, the ability to exercise the Rights is conditional on the Group achieving certain performance
hurdles related to relative total shareholder return to the ASX Small Cap Industrial index.

30 March 2007

Further details are included in the Remuneration Report above.

18 November 2005

Nil
Nil

296,045
49,38830 June 2005

The value at grant date calculated in accordance with AASB 2 Share-based Payment of Rights granted during the year as
part of remuneration.

The percentage of the value of remuneration consisting of Rights, based on the value at grant date set out in column B.

The value at exercise date of Rights that were granted as part of remuneration and were exercised during the year.
The value at lapse date of Rights that were granted as part of remuneration and that lapsed during the year.

18 August 2004

Date Rights granted

30,556
Nil

E P Sheridan
B J Ward

A J Allen
B D Arnott
C Burdon

B W Hodges

Name

S D Burraston

19,202

30 October 2006 Nil 206,875
360,838
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E. Other information

Environmental regulation







Insurance of officers

Proceedings on behalf of the Company

Non-audit services





No person has applied to the court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the
Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of
the Company for all or part of these proceedings.

all manufacturing and engineering sites have developed, implemented, and maintain environmental management systems
meeting the requirements of ISO14001

A Group wide environmental management system is in place which complies with the international standard ISO14001. It is
Group policy to be environmentally proactive and to adopt practices that minimise adverse environmental impacts and to
communicate and provide appropriate feedback on the Group's environmental performance. In accordance with the Group's
environmental policy, procedures and goals have been established aimed at ensuring:

During the year, the Group paid a premium to insure the directors and secretaries of the Company and its Australian-based
controlled entities, the general managers of each of the businesses, all executive officers of the Group and of any related body
corporate against a liability incurred by such a director, secretary or executive officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations
Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.
The Company has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify any officer of
the Group or of any related body corporate against a liability incurred by any such officer.

Based upon the results of inquiries made, the Board is not aware of any significant breaches during the period covered by this
report nor does it consider the Group is subject to any presently known material environmental liabilities.

continuing reduction of industrial waste disposal costs by continual improvement of working practices, such as cleaner
production and improved recycling

zero notifiable incidents and zero justified neighbourhood complaints
the environmental management systems are integrated with the existing business systems

The Group's operations are subject to significant environmental regulation under both Commonwealth and State legislation
governing, amongst other things, noise, air emissions, the use, handling, and disposal of hazardous substances and waste. The
Group has devoted and will continue to devote resources to environmental compliance and management in each of the
jurisdictions in which it operates.

No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Company with leave of the Court under section
237 of the Corporations Act 2001.

The Company may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where the auditor's
expertise and experience with the Company and/or Group are important.
Details of the amounts paid to the auditor (PricewaterhouseCoopers) for audit and non-audit services provided during the year are
set out below.
The Board of directors has considered the position and, in accordance with advice received from the Audit Committee, is satisfied
that the provision of the non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

all non-audit services have been reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensure they do not impact the impartiality and objectivity
of the auditor
none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in Professional Statement
F1, including reviewing or auditing the auditor’s own work, acting in a management or decision making capacity for the
Company, acting as advocate for the Company or jointly sharing economic risks and rewards.

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent entity, its related
practices and non-related audit firms:
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Bradken Limited
Directors' report (continued)

30 June 2007

E. Other information (continued)

2007 2006
$ $

Assurance services
1. Audit services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:
Audit and review of financial reports and other audit work under Corporations Act 2001 222,750 188,000

Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm 70,721 -
Non-PricewaterhouseCoopers audit firm (Deloittes NZ) 18,966 17,563
Total remuneration for audit services 312,437 205,563

2. Other assurance services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:
IFRS accounting services 12,000 30,000

Total remuneration for other assurance services 12,000 30,000

Total remuneration for assurance services 324,437 235,563

Taxation services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:
Tax compliance services, including review of Company income tax returns 22,870 81,765
International tax consulting and advice 43,327 61,761

Non-PricewaterhouseCoopers audit firm (Deloittes NZ) 4,653 5,616
Total remuneration for taxation services 70,850 149,142

Auditors' independence declaration

Rounding of amounts

Auditor

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

BW Hodges
Managing Director

Sydney

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission,
relating to the "rounding off" of amounts in the directors' report. Amounts in the directors' report have been rounded off in
accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar.

PricewatehouseCoopers continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.

6 August 2007

A copy of the auditors' independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page
50.

Consolidated
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(a)

(b)

This declaration is in respect of Bradken Limited and the entities it controlled during the period.

D A Turner Sydney
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

6 August 2007

Auditors Independence Declaration

no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

As lead auditor for the audit of Bradken Limited for the year ended 30 June 2007, I declare that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, there have been:

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the
audit; and

PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 780 433 757

PricewaterhouseCoopers Centre
26 Honeysuckle Drive
PO Box 798
NEWCASTLE NSW 2300
DX 77 Newcastle
Australia
www.pwc.com/au
Telephone +61 2 4925 1100
Facsimile +61 2 4925 1199

Liability is limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

AUDITOR’S DECLARATION

(a)

(b)

This declaration is in respect of Bradken Limited and the entities it controlled during the period.

D A Turner Sydney
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

6 August 2007

Auditors Independence Declaration

no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

As lead auditor for the audit of Bradken Limited for the year ended 30 June 2007, I declare that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, there have been:

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the
audit; and

PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 780 433 757

PricewaterhouseCoopers Centre
26 Honeysuckle Drive
PO Box 798
NEWCASTLE NSW 2300
DX 77 Newcastle
Australia
www.pwc.com/au
Telephone +61 2 4925 1100
Facsimile +61 2 4925 1199

Liability is limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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2 Maud Street

This financial report covers both Bradken Limited as an individual entity and the consolidated entity consisting of Bradken
Limited and its subsidiaries. The financial report is presented in the Australian currency.
Bradken Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and principal
place of business is:

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our corporate reporting is timely, complete, and available globally at
minimum cost to the company. All press releases, financial reports and other information are available at our Shareholders'
Centre on our website: www.bradken.com.au.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 6 August 2007. The company has the power to amend and
reissue the financial report.

A description of the nature of the consolidated entity's principal activities and a review of operations is included on page 29
and pages 37 to 38 of the directors' report, both of which are not part of this financial report.

Mayfield West NSW 2304

FINANCIAL REPORT
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Income statements
For the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue from continuing operations 5 642,199 549,110 35,000 34,457
Cost of sales (501,038) (441,905) - -
Gross profit 141,161 107,205 35,000 34,457

Other income 6 1,518 - - -
Selling and technical expenses (29,731) (24,136) - -
Administration expenses (29,685) (22,751) - -
Finance costs 7 (13,174) (11,939) - -

Profit before income tax 70,089 48,379 35,000 34,457

Income tax (expense) / benefit 8 (20,997) (14,482) - -

Profit for the year 49,092 33,897 35,000 34,457

49,092 33,897 35,000 34,457

Cents Cents

38 46.3 32.5

38 45.8 32.3

Parent entityConsolidated

The above income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Profit attributable to members of Bradken Limited

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the company:

Basic earnings per ordinary share:
(cents per share)

Diluted earnings per ordinary share:
(cents per share)

INCOME STATEMENTS
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Balance sheets
As at 30 June 2007

2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 15,747 20,166 - -
Trade and other receivables 10 86,745 58,493 111,876 102,479
Inventories 11 91,451 75,201 - -
Derivative financial instruments 12 854 204 - -
Total current assets 194,797 154,064 111,876 102,479

Non-current assets
Receivables 13 3,155 4,235 - -
Other financial assets 14 - - 172,292 172,292
Property, plant and equipment 15 206,927 151,546 - -
Deferred tax assets 16 14,540 16,429 - -
Intangible Assets 17 55,158 39,139 - -
Available for sale financial assets 18 10,845 - - -
Total non-current assets 290,625 211,349 172,292 172,292

Total assets 485,422 365,413 284,168 274,771

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 74,114 53,509 - -
Borrowings 20 5,579 4,242 - -
Current tax liabilities 10,500 10,374 11,151 10,386
Provisions 21 31,597 28,502 - -
Derivative financial instruments 12 150 192 - -
Total Current Liabilities 121,940 96,819 11,151 10,386

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 22 202,532 130,233 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 23 - - - -
Provisions 24 3,242 3,159 - -
Total non-current liabilities 205,774 133,392 - -

Total liabilities 327,714 230,211 11,151 10,386

Net assets 157,708 135,202 273,017 264,385

Equity
Contributed equity 25 83,684 83,337 249,306 248,959
Reserves 26(a) 691 45 1,226 362
Retained profits 26(b) 73,333 51,820 22,485 15,064

Total equity 157,708 135,202 273,017 264,385

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Consolidated Parent entity

BALANCE SHEETS
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Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

135,202 108,839 264,385 237,583

Reserves 26 - (610) - -

135,202 108,229 264,385 237,583

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax 26 455 761 - -

26 (673) (30) - -

Net income recognised directly in equity (218) 731 - -
Profit for the year 49,092 33,897 35,000 34,457
Total recognised income and expense for the year 48,874 34,628 35,000 34,457

25 - 11,167 - 11,167
27 (27,579) (19,393) (27,579) (19,393)
25 - 74 - 74
26 1,211 479 1,211 479
25 - 18 - 18

(26,368) (7,655) (26,368) (7,655)
Total equity at the end of the financial year 157,708 135,202 273,017 264,385

Members of Bradken Limited 48,874 34,628 35,000 34,457
48,874 34,628 35,000 34,457

Adjustment on adoption of AASB132 and AASB139,
net of tax, to:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

Non Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan

Parent entity

Transactions with equity holders in their capacity as
equity holders:
Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs

Total recognised income and expense for the year is
attributable to:

Restated total equity at the beginning of the
financial year

Total equity at the beginning of the financial year

Dividends provided for or paid

Performance Rights Plan
Employee Share Scheme

Consolidated

The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
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Cash flow statements
For the year ended 30 June 2007

2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities

690,786 607,330 - -

(597,140) (521,080) - -

93,646 86,250 - -
Interest received 674 440 - -
Interest paid (11,944) (10,780) - -
Income taxes paid (17,128) (8,225) - -

Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities 36 65,248 67,685 - -

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment (41,622) (20,679) - -
Payment for purchase of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 33 (26,209) (2,935) - -
Payment for businesses 33 (15,298) - - -
Payment for available for sale financial assets 18 (10,844) - - -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 58 352 - -

Net cash (outflow) inflow from investing activities (93,915) (23,262) - -

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of finance lease liabilities (7,836) (4,129) - -
Repayment of borrowings (23,973) (15,238) - -
Proceeds from borrowings 83,713 3,697 - -
Dividends paid to company's shareholders 27 (27,579) (9,725) - -

Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing activities 24,325 (25,395) - -

(4,342) 19,028 - -

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20,166 1,157 - -

(77) (19) - -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 15,747 20,166 - -

Financing arrangements 22
Non-cash financing and investing activities 37

The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Receipts from customers
(inclusive of goods and services tax)
Payments to suppliers and employees
(inclusive of goods and services tax)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

Consolidated Parent entity

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS



BRADKEN LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007   56

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2007

Contents to the notes to the financial statements
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(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

(b) Principles of consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries

(c) Segment reporting

(d) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional currency and presentation currency

Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group (refer to note 1(h)).

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Bradken Limited (''company'' or
''parent entity'') as at 30 June 2007 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Bradken Limited and its
subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial report as the Group or the consolidated entity.

Critical accounting estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial report includes separate financial
statements for Bradken Limited as an individual entity and the consolidated entity consisting of Bradken Limited and its
subsidiaries.

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues Group Interpretations and the
Corporations Act 2001

Compliance with IFRSs
Australian Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS).
Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the consolidated financial statements and notes of Bradken Limited comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The parent entity financial statements and notes also comply with IFRSs
except that it has elected to apply the relief provided to parent entities in respect of certain disclosure requirements contained in
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosure.

Minority interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated income statement and
balance sheet respectively.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the individual financial statements of Bradken Limited.

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different to those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment and is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars, which is Bradken Limited’s functional and presentation currency.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances

(iii) Group companies






(e) Revenue recognition

(i) Sale of goods

(ii) Contract revenue

(iii) Interest income

(iv) Sale of non-current assets

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings
and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investments are repaid, a proportionate share of such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale where applicable.

all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of
returns, trade allowances and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognised for the major business
activities as follows:

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets is recognised when the consolidated entity has passed the
significant risks and rewards to the buyer.

The stage of completion is measured by reference to an assessment of total labour hours and other costs incurred to date as a
percentage of costs for each contract.
Where the outcome of a contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract costs are expensed as incurred. Where it is probable
that the cost will be recovered, revenue is recognised to the extent of costs incurred. Where it is probable that a loss will arise
on a contract, the excess of total costs over revenue is recognised immediately as an expense.

Contract revenue and expenses are recognised on an individual contract basis using the percentage of completion method
when the stage of contract completion can be reliably determined, costs to date can be clearly identified, and total contract
revenue and costs to complete can be reliably estimated.

The gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets is included as other income or expense at the date control passes to the
buyer, usually when an unconditional contract of sale is signed. The gain or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the net proceeds on disposal.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the financial asset.

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Royalties

(vi) Dividends

(f) Income tax

Tax consolidation legislation

(g) Leases

Dividends received out of pre-acquisition reserves are eliminated against the carrying amount of the investment and not
recognised in revenue.

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to unused
tax losses.

Dividend revenue is recognised net of any franking credits.
Revenue from distributions from controlled entities is recognised by the parent entity when they are declared by the controlled
entities.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases (note 15). Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in borrowings. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term.

Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are
recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidated entities.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The head entity, Bradken Limited, and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group account for their own current and
deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group continues to be a stand
alone taxpayer in its own right.

Bradken Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation legislation.

Royalty revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets
are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction.
The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the
deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an
asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or
taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Bradken Limited also recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets)
and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax
consolidated group.
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts
receivable from or payable to other entities in the group. Details about tax funding agreements are disclosed in note 8.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Business combinations

(i) Impairment of assets

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

(k) Trade receivables

(l) Inventories
(i) Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases (note 31). Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at
which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (refer to note 1(q)). If the
cost of acquisition is less than the Group's share of the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement, but only after a reassessment of the identification and measurement of the net
assets acquired.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, including business combinations involving
entities or businesses under common control, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. Cost is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Where equity instruments are issued in an acquisition, the value of
the instruments is their published market price as at the date of exchange unless, in rare circumstances, it can be demonstrated
that the published price at the date of exchange is an unreliable indicator of fair value and that other evidence and valuation
methods provide a more reliable measure of fair value. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are
recognised directly in equity.

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance
sheet.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently, less provision for doubtful debts. Trade receivables
are normally due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition.

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being
allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to inventory on hand by the method most appropriate
to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being valued on either standard or weighted average basis. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
such as expenses of marketing, selling and distribution to customers.

Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A
provision for doubtful receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the value of estimated future cash flows. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income
statement.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(ii) Construction and service contract work in progress

(iii) Stock Obsolescence

(m) Investments and other financial assets
Classification

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(ii) Loans and receivables

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Subsequent measurement

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally marketable equity securities, are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
category, including interest and dividend income, are presented in the income statement within other income or other expenses
in the period in which they arise. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the
receivable. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in receivables in the balance sheet (notes
10 and 13).

All inventory items are reviewed on a regular basis during the year and a provision raised for products which have not been sold
for one year unless the review indicates that a sale is likely.

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in
the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity, re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading which are acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term with the intention of making a profit. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and classifies as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. The translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the profit
or loss and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

Construction and service contract work in progress is carried at cost plus profit recognised to date based on the value of work
completed, less progress billings and less provision for foreseeable losses. If there are contracts where progress billings
exceed the aggregate costs incurred plus profits less losses, the net amounts are presented under other liabilities.
Cost includes variable and fixed costs directly related to specific contracts, those costs related to contract activity in general
which can be allocated to specific contracts on a reasonable basis and other costs specifically chargeable under the contract.
Costs expected to be incurred under penalty clauses and rectification provisions are also included.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value

Impairment

(n) Derivatives

(i) Fair value hedge

(ii) Cash flow hedge

The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
a security below its cost is considered in determining whether the security is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit and loss - is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed through the income statement.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the income statement as gain and losses from investment securities.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether
the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates
certain derivatives as either; (1) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value
hedge); or (2) hedges of the cash flows of recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow
hedge).

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedge item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss over the period to maturity using a recalculated effective
interest rate.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.
The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings is recognised in the income
statement within other income or other expense together with the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion and changes in
the fair value of the hedge fixed rate borrowings attributable to the interest rate risk. . The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised in the income statement within other income or other expenses.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in equity in the hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement within other income or other expense.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm's
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions have been and will continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items.
The fair values of various derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 12. Movements in
the hedging reserve in shareholders' equity are shown in note 26.
The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
item is less than 12 months.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the hedged item will affect profit or
loss (for instance when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest
rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in the income statement within "finance costs". The gain or loss
relating to the effective portion of forward foreign exchange contracts hedging export sales is recognised in the income
statement within "sales". However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset (for example, inventory or a non-financial liability), the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from
equity and included in the measurement of the initial cost or carrying amount of the asset or liability.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(iii) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

(o) Fair value estimation

(p) Property, plant and equipment

Buildings 66 years
Plant and equipment 1 to 20 years
Patterns 1 to 40 years

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-
for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask
price.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (note 1(i)).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings but excluding land. Depreciation is
calculated on a straight line basis so as to write off the net cost of each asset over its expected useful life. Assets are
depreciated or amortised from the date of acquisition, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is
completed and held ready for use. Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that
does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement and are included in other income or
other expenses.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure
purposes.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each balance date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt instruments held. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated
future cash flows. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the
balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the income
statement.

All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

(ii) Licences

(iii) Research and development

(r) Trade and other payables

(s) Borrowings

(t) Borrowing costs

(u) Provisions

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will be a
success considering its commercial and technical feasibility and its costs can be measured reliably. The expenditure
capitalised comprises all directly attributable costs, including costs of materials, services, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for
use on a straight-line basis over its useful life, which varies from 3 to 10 years.

A provision is recognised in the accounts when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 60 days of recognition.

Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of the licences over their estimated useful lives, which varies
according to the period over which the expected benefits will arise. The remaining useful lives of licences varies between two
and five years.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities, which are not incremental cost relating to the actual draw-down of the facility, are recognised as prepayments and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the term of the facility or 5 years.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to
borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs in connection with arrangement of borrowings, foreign exchange differences net of
hedged amounts on borrowings, including trade creditors and lease finance charges.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investments in associates. Goodwill is not amortised.
Instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Warranties

(v) Employee Benefits
(i) Wages, salaries, annual leave, sick leave, rostered days off and non-monetary benefits

(ii) Long service leave

(iii) Bonus plans





(iv) Employee share and rights plans

(v) Superannuation plan

(w) Contributed equity

past practice gives clear evidence of the amount of the obligation.

If the entity reacquires its own equity instruments, eg as the result of a share buy-back, those instruments are deducted from
equity and the associated shares are cancelled. No gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss and the consideration paid
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is recognised directly in equity.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when they are settled.

A liability for employee benefits in the form of bonus plans is recognised in current provisions when there is no realistic
alternative but to settle the liability and at least one of the following conditions is met:

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or rights are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
rights for the acquisition of a business are not included in the cost of the acquisition as part of the purchase consideration.

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees and directors via the Performance Rights Plan ('PRP') and the
Non-Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan ('NEDSAP') respectively.

Products are warranted against faulty workmanship and in some cases these are specifically extended to periods up to seven
years or hours used depending on the type of product and contract in place. Rectification claims are settled in cash or by repair
of the item, at the discretion of the Group. Provision for warranty claims are made for claims received and claims expected to
be received in relation to sales made prior to reporting date adjusted for specific information arising from internal quality
assurance processes. Significant uncertainties relate to estimates for construction provisions as these depend on
circumstances particular to each site.

there are formal terms in the plan for determining the amount of the benefit

The provision for long service leave represents the present value of the expected future cash outflows to be made resulting
from employees’ services provided to reporting date.

Liabilities for annual leave, accumulating sick leave and rostered days off, including non monetary benefits, expected to be
settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in current provisions in respect of employees' services up to the
reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non
accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable. Liabilities for
unpaid wages and salaries up to the reporting date are recognised in current payables.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to
maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The Group contributes to several accumulation superannuation plans. Contributions are recognised as an expense as they are
payable.

The fair value of Rights granted under the PRP are recognised as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase
in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date taking into account market performance conditions only, and spread over the
vesting period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the Rights. The fair value of Rights granted are
measured using the Black & Scholes Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions attached to the Rights. The
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of Rights that vest except where forfeiture is due to
market related conditions.
The fair value of shares issued under the NEDSAP are recognised as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date.

the amounts to be paid are determined before the time of completion of the financial report
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Dividends

(y) Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

(z) Goods and services tax (GST)

(aa) Rounding of amounts

(ab) Amended accounting standards and UIG interpretations

(i) AASB 2007-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from ED 151 and Other Amendments was issued in
April 2007. This standard reinstates some of the options that exist in the international board’s pure IFRS which were removed
by the AASB when it promulgated Australian equivalents (AIFRS) in Australia. It also removes some of the additional
disclosure requirements added to AIFRS by the AASB. The significant options reinstated are the option to use the indirect
method of presenting cash flow statements and the option to use proportionate consolidation for accounting for investments in
joint venture entities.
(ii) AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 8 was issued in February 2007 and
applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. Early adoption is permitted for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005 but before 1 January 2009, provided AASB 8 is also adopted early for the same
period. This standard applies when AASB 8 Operating Segments is applied. AASB 8 necessitates consequential amendments
to AASB 5, AASB 6, AASB 102, AASB 107, AASB 119, AASB 127, AASB 134, AASB 136, AASB 1023 and AASB 1038.
(iii) AASB 2007-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 11 was issued in February
2007 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007. Early adoption is permitted for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005 where AASB Interpretation 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions
(the equivalent of IFRIC 11) is applied to the period. The transitional provisions in IFRIC 11 state that the interpretation applies
retrospectively, subject to the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment. As AASB 2, the Australian equivalent of
IFRS 2, does not include corresponding transitional provisions, this standard amends AASB 2 to insert those provisions. This
gives AASB Interpretation 11 the same transitional provisions as IFRIC 11.
The Group has not adopted any of the standards early. Application of the standards and interpretations will not affect any of the
amounts recognised in the financial statements, but may in future impact the type of information disclosed in relation to the
Group’s segments.

Certain amended accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2007
reporting periods. The Group’s and the parent entity’s assessment of the impact of these amended standards and
interpretations is set out below.

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class order 98/0100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission,
relating to the ''rounding off'' of amounts in the financial report. Amounts in the financial report have been rounded off in
accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
entity, on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at balance date.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the
after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted
average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of
the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
which are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are presented as operating cash flows.
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2 Financial risk management

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

(ii) Price risk

(iii) Fair value interest rate risk

(b) Credit risk

(c) Liquidity risk

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

(ii) Estimated percentage completion for major contracts
The Group reviews the percentage of completion for it's major contracts monthly including assessing costs to be incurred to
complete the project in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 1(e) and note 1(l). These assessments require an
estimate of the remaining labour and material costs for the projects.

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
1(q). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of assumptions. Refer to note 16 for details of these assumptions and the potential impact of
changes to the assumptions.

The Group's interest-rate-risk arises from long term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate-risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate-risk. Group policy is to fix
the rates for between 30% and 70% of its borrowings.
The Group manages its cash flow interest-rate-risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have
the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group raises long-term
borrowings at floating rates and swaps them into fixed rates that are lower than those available if the Group borrowed at fixed
rates directly. Under the interest-rate swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (mainly
quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed
notional principal amounts.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group's income and operating cash flows are not materially
exposed to changes in market interest rates.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Group aims at
maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and
services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited
to high credit quality financial institutions.

Refer to (d) below.

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk through the purchase of steel and various alloys.

Risk management is carried out centrally by the CFO and finance function under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity's functional currency. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from currency exposures to various currencies. It is the policy of the Group to enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts to cover all foreign currency exposure other than those effectively covered within the natural hedging pool.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge
certain risk exposures.
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(continued)

2 Financial risk management

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

(ii) Price risk

(iii) Fair value interest rate risk

(b) Credit risk

(c) Liquidity risk

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

(ii) Estimated percentage completion for major contracts
The Group reviews the percentage of completion for it's major contracts monthly including assessing costs to be incurred to
complete the project in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 1(e) and note 1(l). These assessments require an
estimate of the remaining labour and material costs for the projects.

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
1(q). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of assumptions. Refer to note 16 for details of these assumptions and the potential impact of
changes to the assumptions.

The Group's interest-rate-risk arises from long term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate-risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate-risk. Group policy is to fix
the rates for between 30% and 70% of its borrowings.
The Group manages its cash flow interest-rate-risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have
the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group raises long-term
borrowings at floating rates and swaps them into fixed rates that are lower than those available if the Group borrowed at fixed
rates directly. Under the interest-rate swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (mainly
quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed
notional principal amounts.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group's income and operating cash flows are not materially
exposed to changes in market interest rates.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Group aims at
maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and
services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited
to high credit quality financial institutions.

Refer to (d) below.

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk through the purchase of steel and various alloys.

Risk management is carried out centrally by the CFO and finance function under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity's functional currency. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from currency exposures to various currencies. It is the policy of the Group to enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts to cover all foreign currency exposure other than those effectively covered within the natural hedging pool.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge
certain risk exposures.
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4 Segment information

(a) Primary reporting format - business segments

Industrial

Mining

Mineral Processing

Rail

Power and Cement (commenced 11 December 2006)

Intersegment
Mineral Power and eliminations/

2007 Notes Industrial Mining Processing Rail Cement unallocated Consolidated

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Sales to external customers 87,622 237,903 93,987 190,376 29,791 - 639,679
Intersegment sales (ii) - - 12,452 - (12,452) -
Total sales revenue 87,622 237,903 106,439 190,376 29,791 (12,452) 639,679
Other revenue/income 4,038
Total segment revenue/income 643,717

Segment result (ii) 27,951 80,862 29,886 45,048 7,916 - 191,663

(121,574)

Profit before income tax 70,089
Income tax expense (20,997)
Net profit for the year 49,092

Segment assets 85,843 146,224 66,988 87,533 41,938 - 428,526
Unallocated assets 56,896
Total assets 485,422

Segment liabilities (ii) 24,065 25,455 14,990 29,424 9,864 - 103,798
Unallocated liabilities 223,916
Total liabilities 327,714

15,479 14,210 5,382 12,628 24,470 480 72,649

1,811 7,897 2,621 2,568 1,305 3,758 19,960

Impairment of inventories Note 11 86 423 41 (102) - - 448

Impairment of trade receivables Note 10 (108) - - - - - (108)

Other non cash expenses / (revenue) 852 359 438 373 6 3,259 5,287

For management purposes, the Group is organised into five major operating divisions – Industrial, Mining, Mineral Processing,
Rail and Power and Cement. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information. The
principal products and services of each of these divisions are as follows:

Unallocated revenue less
unallocated expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
expense

Acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment, intangibles and other
non-current segment assets

Supplier of cast, machined and fabricated components manufactured to customer specifications or purpose designed to suit
customer needs into industries such as Smelters and Refineries, Steel Manufacturers, Power Generation Providers and Sugar
Production.

Design, supply and service of wear components for all types of earth moving equipment in the Mining and Quarry industries.

Supplier of equipment, servicing and consumables to the mineral processing and quarrying industries.

Package provider of Freight Rollingstock products and services including freight wagons, bogies, drawgear, inventory
management, spare and renewed parts and the maintenance and refurbishment of rollingstock.

Supplier of large white iron wear parts for the power and cement industries.
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4 Segment information

(a) Primary reporting format - business segments

Industrial

Mining

Mineral Processing

Rail

Power and Cement (commenced 11 December 2006)

Intersegment
Mineral Power and eliminations/

2007 Notes Industrial Mining Processing Rail Cement unallocated Consolidated

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Sales to external customers 87,622 237,903 93,987 190,376 29,791 - 639,679
Intersegment sales (ii) - - 12,452 - (12,452) -
Total sales revenue 87,622 237,903 106,439 190,376 29,791 (12,452) 639,679
Other revenue/income 4,038
Total segment revenue/income 643,717

Segment result (ii) 27,951 80,862 29,886 45,048 7,916 - 191,663

(121,574)

Profit before income tax 70,089
Income tax expense (20,997)
Net profit for the year 49,092

Segment assets 85,843 146,224 66,988 87,533 41,938 - 428,526
Unallocated assets 56,896
Total assets 485,422

Segment liabilities (ii) 24,065 25,455 14,990 29,424 9,864 - 103,798
Unallocated liabilities 223,916
Total liabilities 327,714

15,479 14,210 5,382 12,628 24,470 480 72,649

1,811 7,897 2,621 2,568 1,305 3,758 19,960

Impairment of inventories Note 11 86 423 41 (102) - - 448

Impairment of trade receivables Note 10 (108) - - - - - (108)

Other non cash expenses / (revenue) 852 359 438 373 6 3,259 5,287

For management purposes, the Group is organised into five major operating divisions – Industrial, Mining, Mineral Processing,
Rail and Power and Cement. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information. The
principal products and services of each of these divisions are as follows:

Unallocated revenue less
unallocated expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
expense

Acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment, intangibles and other
non-current segment assets

Supplier of cast, machined and fabricated components manufactured to customer specifications or purpose designed to suit
customer needs into industries such as Smelters and Refineries, Steel Manufacturers, Power Generation Providers and Sugar
Production.

Design, supply and service of wear components for all types of earth moving equipment in the Mining and Quarry industries.

Supplier of equipment, servicing and consumables to the mineral processing and quarrying industries.

Package provider of Freight Rollingstock products and services including freight wagons, bogies, drawgear, inventory
management, spare and renewed parts and the maintenance and refurbishment of rollingstock.

Supplier of large white iron wear parts for the power and cement industries.
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4 Segment information (continued)
Intersegment

Mineral Power and eliminations/

2006 Notes Industrial Mining Processing Rail Cement unallocated Consolidated

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Sales to external customers 63,696 212,111 105,896 166,118 - - 547,821
Intersegment sales (ii) - - 1,420 - - (1,420) -
Total sales revenue 63,696 212,111 107,316 166,118 - (1,420) 547,821
Other revenue/income 1,289
Total segment revenue/income 549,110

Segment result (ii) 19,786 68,910 30,014 36,812 - - 155,522

(107,143)

Profit before income tax 48,379
Income tax expense (14,482)
Net profit for the year 33,897

Segment assets 57,031 127,416 66,980 73,035 - - 324,462
Unallocated assets 40,951
Total assets 365,413

Segment liabilities (ii) 18,280 22,528 14,748 30,112 - - 85,668
Unallocated liabilities 144,543
Total liabilities 230,211

5,869 6,609 7,742 5,632 - 263 26,115

1,596 8,174 2,288 2,212 - 3,300 17,570

Impairment of inventories Note 11 (14) 191 86 83 - - 346

Impairment of trade receivables Note 10 - (305) - - - - (305)

Other non cash expenses 743 (892) 354 195 - (774) (374)

(b) Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Australia 506,458 453,349 378,655 321,693 47,434 26,030
UK 8,185 - 41,938 - 24,470 -
Other countries 125,036 94,472 7,933 2,769 745 85

639,679 547,821 428,526 324,462 72,649 26,115
Unallocated assets 56,896 40,951
Total assets 485,422 365,413

Acquisitions of
property, plant and

equipment, intangibles
and other non-current

segment assets

Segment assetsSegment revenues
from sales to external

customers

Segment revenues are allocated based on the country in which the customer is located. Segment assets and capital
expenditure are allocated based on where the assets are located.

The Group's divisions are managed on a global basis and operate in three main geographical areas, Australia, the home country
of the parent entity, the UK and Other countries. The majority of revenue classified as "Other" relates to the USA, Indonesia and
various European countries.

Unallocated revenue less
unallocated expenses

Acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment, intangibles and other
non-current segment assets

Depreciation and amortisation
expense
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4 Segment information (continued)

(c) Notes to and forming part of the segment information

(i) Accounting policies

(ii) Inter segment transfers

5 Revenue

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

From continuing operations
Sales revenue

Sale of goods 639,679 547,821 - -
639,679 547,821 - -

Other revenue
Interest 674 440 - -
Dividends - - 35,000 34,457
Rental income 210 201 - -
Royalty income 712 150 - -
Management fees 399 - - -
Other 525 498 - -

642,199 549,110 35,000 34,457

6 Other income

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

845 - - -
673 - - -

1,518 - - -

(a)

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

845 - - -

845 - - -

(b) Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net loss in 2006 - refer to note 7)

Consolidated Parent entity

The consolidated net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment in 2007 includes a gain of $709,000 on sale of freehold
land.

Parent entityConsolidated

Consolidated Parent entity

Foreign exchange gains (net) (note (a))
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note (b))

Net foreign exchange gains included in other income for the
year
Net foreign exchange gains recognised in profit before income
tax for the year (as either other income or expense)

Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of the entity as disclosed in note 1 and accounting
standard AASB 114 Segment Reporting .
Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are those that are directly attributable to a segment. Segment assets
include all assets used by a segment and consist primarily of receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment, net of
related provisions. Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other creditors, employee benefits and provision for service
warranties.

Segment revenues, expenses and results include transfers between segments. Sales of scrap between controlled entities are
made on an "arm's-length" basis and are eliminated on consolidation. All other transfers are made at variable cost and are
eliminated on consolidation.

Net foreign exchange gains (net loss in 2006 - refer to
note 7)
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7 Expenses

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Depreciation
Buildings 559 437 - -
Plant & equipment 12,136 9,310 - -
Leasehold improvements 7 8 - -
Plant & equipment under finance leases 3,580 3,254 - -

Total depreciation 16,282 13,009 - -

Amortisation
Licences 3,678 4,561 - -

Total amortisation 3,678 4,561 - -

Finance costs - net
Interest and finance charges paid/payable 12,826 11,093 - -
Borrowing costs amortisation 778 1,159 - -

13,604 12,252 - -
Amount capitalised (430) (313) - -

Finance costs expensed 13,174 11,939 - -

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 502 - -

Rental expense relating to operating leases
Minimum lease payments 2,035 1,947 - -

Total rental expense relating to operating leases 2,035 1,947 - -

Foreign exchange gains and losses (net gain in 2007 - see note 6)
Net foreign exchange losses - 62 - -

- 62 - -

Research and development 3,604 4,113 - -

Warranty 1,705 2,425 - -

Stock Obsolescence 448 346 - -

(108) (305) - -

Employee benefits expense 192,888 162,286 - -

Consolidated Parent entity

Net foreign exchange losses recognised in profit before income
tax for the year (as either other income or expense)

Net bad and doubtful debts expense (revenue) including
movements in doubtful debts provision

Profit before income tax includes the following specific
expenses:
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8 Income tax expense

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax 18,322 12,343 - -
Deferred tax 3,278 2,604 - -
Under (over) provided in prior years (603) (465) - -

20,997 14,482 - -

Income tax expense is attributable to:
Profit from continuing operations 20,997 14,482 - -
Aggregate income tax expense 20,997 14,482 - -

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (note 16) 2,600 2,392 - -
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities (note 23) 678 212 - -

3,278 2,604 - -

(b)

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 70,089 48,379 35,000 34,457

70,089 48,379 35,000 34,457
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2005: 30%) 21,027 14,514 10,500 10,337

Entertainment 95 73 - -
Research and development (231) (231) - -
Share based payments 363 - - -
De-recognition of leased assets - 122 - -
Tax offset for franked dividends - - (10,500) (10,337)
Sundry items 195 162 - -

21,449 14,640 - -
Difference in overseas tax rates 111 3 - -
Under (over) provision in prior years (603) (161) - -
Deferred tax assets restated for reduction in overseas tax rate 40
Income tax expense 20,997 14,482 - -

(c)

195 61 - -
195 61 - -

(d)

Consolidated

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxable income:

Deferred income tax (revenue) expense included in income tax
expense comprises:

Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to
prima facie tax payable

Parent entity

Bradken Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation legislation as of 1
July 2003. The accounting policy in relation to this legislation is set out in note 1(f).
On adoption of the tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the tax consolidated group entered into a tax sharing agreement
which, in the opinion of the directors, limits the joint and several liability of the wholly-owned entities in the case of a default by
the head entity, Bradken Limited.

Net deferred tax - debited (credited) directly to equity (notes
16 and 23)

Tax consolidation legislation

Amounts recognised directly in equity

Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting
period and not recognised in net profit or loss but directly
debited or credited to equity
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8 Income tax expense (continued)

9 Current assets - Cash and cash equivalents

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cash at bank and in hand 15,747 20,166 - -
15,747 20,166 - -

(a)
The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows as follows:

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balances as above 15,747 20,166 - -
Balances per statement of cash flows 15,747 20,166 - -

(b)
These are interest bearing at a rate between 0% and 7.50% (2006: 0% and 5.70%).

10 Current assets - Trade and other receivables

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Trade receivables 82,514 55,657 - -
Provision for doubtful receivables (142) (148) - -

82,372 55,509 - -

Other receivables 1,998 1,144 - -
Prepaid borrowing and loan set up costs 1,119 1,075 - -
Prepayments 1,256 765 - -
Inter-group loans - - 111,876 102,479

86,745 58,493 111,876 102,479
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

These amounts generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Group.

Information concerning the effective interest rate and credit risk of both current and non current receivables is set out in the non-
current receivables note (note 13).

Prepaid borrowing and loan set up costs
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities, which are not incremental cost relating to the actual draw-down of the facility,
are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the facility.

Effective interest rates and credit risk

Consolidated Parent entity

Other receivables

The Group has recognised a gain of $108,000 (2006: gain of $305,000) in respect of bad and doubtful trade receivables during
the year ended 30 June 2007. The amounts have been included in 'administration expenses' in the income statement.

Reconciliation to cash at the end of the year

Consolidated Parent entity

Bad and doubtful trade receivables

Consolidated Parent entity

The entities have also entered into a tax funding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities fully compensate Bradken
Limited for any current tax payable assumed and are compensated by Bradken Limited for any current tax receivable and
deferred tax assets relating to the unused tax losses or unused tax credits that are transferred to Bradken Limited under the tax
consolidation legislation. The funding amounts are determined by reference to the amounts recognised in the wholly-owned
entities' financial statements.

Cash at bank and on hand

The amounts receivable/payable under the tax funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding advice from the head
entity, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of the financial year. The head entity may also require payment of
interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay tax instalments. The funding amounts are recognised as current
intercompany receivables or payables (see note 32(e)).
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11 Current assets – Inventories

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Raw materials and stores - at cost 14,488 11,214 - -
Work in progress - at cost 28,710 21,841 - -

Finished goods
- at cost 47,331 39,222 - -

47,331 39,222 - -

Construction work in progress:

148,435 215,136 - -
Progress billing (147,513) (212,212) - -

922 2,924 - -

91,451 75,201 - -
(a)

12 Derivative financial instruments

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current assets

854 204 - -
Total current derivative financial instrument assets 854 204 - -

Current liabilities
150 192 - -

Total current derivative financial instrument liabilities 150 192 - -

704 12 - -
(a)

(b)

(i) Interest rate swap and interest rate cap contracts - cash flow hedges

At 30 June 2007, the notional principal amounts and periods of expiry of the interest rate swap and cap contracts are as follows:

Consolidated Parent entity

The Group has taken the exemption available under AASB 1 to apply AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation and AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement from 1 July 2005. For further information
please refer to our Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2006.

The Group is party to derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposure to fluctuations
in interest and foreign exchange rates in accordance with the Group's financial risk management policies (refer to note 2).

Forward foreign exchange contracts ((b)(ii))

Transition to AASB 132 and AASB 139

Instruments used by the Group

Interest rate swap and cap contracts -
cash flow hedges ((b)(i))

Consolidated Parent entity

Bank loans of the Group currently bear an average variable interest rate of 7.2%. It is policy to protect part of the loans from
exposure to increasing interest rates. Accordingly, the Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it is
obliged to receive interest at variable rates and to pay interest at fixed rates, and interest rate caps which provide protection over
an agreed interest rate level.
Swaps and caps currently in place cover approximately 39% (2006: 42%) of the bank loan principal outstanding and are timed to
expire as each loan repayment falls due. The average fixed interest for the swaps and cap is 6.420% (2006: 6.026%).

Contract costs incurred and recognised profits less
recognised losses

Inventory expense
Write downs of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year ended 30 June 2007 amounted to
$448,000 (2006: $346,000). The expense has been included in 'cost of sales' in the income statement.
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12 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Interest rate swap contracts

Less than 1 year 2,000 4,000
1 - 2 years 36,250 2,000
2 - 3 years 8,750 36,250
3 - 4 years - 8,750

47,000 51,000
Interest rate cap contract

2 - 3 years 30,000 -
30,000 -

(ii) Forward exchange contracts

Sell Australian Dollars Average exchange rate
2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Buy Great British Pounds
Maturity
0 to 3 months - 50 - 0.4026

Buy US Dollars
Maturity
0 to 3 months 2,506 - 0.7981 -

Buy Euros
Maturity
3 to 6 months 223 - 0.6063 -
6 to 12 months 25 - 0.6032 -

Buy Japanese Yen
Maturity
3 to 6 months 377 - 98.1000 -
6 to 12 months 776 - 90.5500 -

Buy South African Rands
Maturity
0 to 3 months - 192 - 5.0741

It is the policy of the Group to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover all foreign currency exposures other than
those effectively covered within the natural hedging pool.

The contracts require settlement of net interest receivable or payable each 90 days. The settlement dates coincide with the
dates on which interest is payable on the underlying debt. The contracts are settled on a net basis.
The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instruments at fair value is deferred in equity in the hedging reserve, to the extent
that the hedge is effective, and re-classified into profit and loss when the hedged interest expense is recognised. The ineffective
portion is recognised in the income statement immediately.
At balance date for the Group these contracts were assets with fair value of $854,000 (2006: $204,000 asset). In the year ended
30 June 2007 there was a gain from the change in fair value of $650,000 (2006: $204,000 gain).

The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding as at reporting date:
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12 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Buy Australian Dollars Average exchange rate
2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Sell Great British Pounds
Maturity
0 to 3 months 553 - 0.4045 -

Sell US Dollars
Maturity
0 to 3 months 935 - 0.7679 -
3 to 6 months 142 - 0.7787 -
6 to 12 months 36 - 0.7765 -

Sell Japanese Yen
Maturity
0 to 3 months - 1,123 - 73.0000
6 to 12 months - 877 - 77.5200

Sell South African Rands
Maturity
0 to 3 months 211 - 5.8533 -

Buy Great British Pounds Average exchange rate
2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Sell US Dollars
Maturity
0 to 3 months 902 - 1.9959 -

Sell Euros
Maturity
0 to 3 months 2,034 - 1.4752 -

Group

(c)

(d)
Refer to note 22 for the Group's exposure to interest rate risk on interest rate swaps.

At balance date these contracts were liabilities of $150,000 (2006: liability of $192,000).

Credit risk exposures

Interest rate risk exposures

Credit risk arises from the potential failure of counterparties to meet their obligations under the respective contracts at maturity.
This arises with amounts receivable from unrealised gains on derivative financial instruments.
The Group manages it's exposure by dealing with major financial institutions.

In the year ended 30 June 2007 there was a gain from the change in fair value of the liability of $42,000 (2006: loss of $228,000)

The Group has not classified any of these hedging instruments to be effective hedges.
Amounts disclosed above represent currency bought and sold measured at the contracted rate.
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13 Non current assets – Receivables

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Prepaid borrowing and loan set up costs 1,700 2,092 - -
Other receivables * 1,455 2,143 - -

3,155 4,235 - -

(a)

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Prepaid loan set up costs 1,700 1,700 2,092 2,092
Other receivables * 1,455 1,455 2,143 2,143

3,155 3,155 4,235 4,235

(b)

(c)

14 Non current assets – Other financial assets

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Shares in subsidiaries (note 34) - - 172,292 172,292
- - 172,292 172,292

Consolidated Parent entity

There is no significant concentration of interest rate risk. Of the other non current receivables amount, $1,413,000 is subject to
an implied interest rate of 6.57% with the balance interest free.

2007 2006

* Refer to note 10 for the current portions of these receivables.

Interest rate risk

Credit risk
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to current and non-current receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers, nationally and internationally dispersed. Refer to note 2 for more information on the risk management policy of the
Group.

Fair values
The fair values and carrying values of non current receivables of the Group are as follows:

Consolidated Parent entity
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15 Non current assets - Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated
Freehold
land Buildings

Leasehold
improve-
ments

Plant and
equipment

Leased
plant and
equipment

Capital
works in
progress Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

At 1 July 2005
Cost or fair value 10,343 29,069 340 114,342 10,643 4,279 169,016
Accumulated depreciation - (1,397) (27) (24,790) (4,116) - (30,330)
Net book amount 10,343 27,672 313 89,552 6,527 4,279 138,686

Year ended 30 June 2006
Opening net book amount 10,343 27,672 313 89,552 6,527 4,279 138,686
Exchange differences - - (30) (30) - - (60)
Additions 1,192 575 - - 5,436 18,912 26,115
Acquisition through entity acquired - - - 668 - - 668

- - - 17,784 - (17,784) -
Disposals - - - (854) - - (854)
Depreciation charge - (437) (8) (9,310) (3,254) - (13,009)
Closing net book amount 11,535 27,810 275 97,810 8,709 5,407 151,546

At 30 June 2006
Cost or fair value 11,535 29,643 305 131,858 14,437 5,407 193,185
Accumulated depreciation - (1,833) (30) (34,048) (5,728) - (41,639)
Net book amount 11,535 27,810 275 97,810 8,709 5,407 151,546

Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount 11,535 27,810 275 97,810 8,709 5,407 151,546
Exchange differences - (244) 29 (565) - - (780)
Additions 3,773 7,393 - 1,104 2,403 30,160 44,833
Acquisition through entity acquired 1,409 7,825 - 18,582 - - 27,816

- - - 21,036 - (21,036) -
Disposals (111) - - (95) - (206)
Depreciation charge - (559) (7) (12,136) (3,580) - (16,282)
Closing net book amount 16,606 42,225 297 125,736 7,532 14,531 206,927

At 30 June 2007
Cost or fair value 16,606 45,336 337 189,531 16,803 14,531 283,144
Accumulated depreciation - (3,111) (40) (63,795) (9,271) - (76,217)
Net book amount 16,606 42,225 297 125,736 7,532 14,531 206,927

Parent entity
There were no property, plant and equipment assets in the parent entity during the period 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2007.

(a) Non current assets pledged as security
Refer to note 22 for information on non-current assets pledged as security by the parent entity and its controlled entities.

Transfer (to)/from capital work in
progress

Transfer (to)/from capital work in
progress
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16 Non current assets - Deferred tax assets

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Doubtful debts 43 43 - -
Employee benefits 8,274 7,329 - -
Pension contributions subject to spreading (UK) 1,221 - - -
Licences 3,559 5,221 - -
Other provisions 3,335 3,570 - -
Share issue expenses 1,618 2,427 - -
Unrealised foreign exchange differences - 54 - -
Other accruals 493 280 - -

18,543 18,924 - -

Net deferred tax assets (4,003) (2,495) - -
14,540 16,429 - -

Movements:

Opening balance at 1 July 18,924 21,310 - -
Credited/(charged) to the income statement (note 8) (2,600) (2,392) - -
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 33) 2,219 6 - -
Closing balance at 30 June 18,543 18,924 - -

Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months 7,366 6,354 - -
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 11,177 12,570 - -

18,543 18,924 - -

17 Non current assets - Intangible assets

Consolidated Goodwill Licences Total
$'000 $'000 $'000

At 1 July 2005
Cost 18,030 37,973 56,003
Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (15,964) (15,964)
Net book amount 18,030 22,009 40,039

Year ended 30 June 2006
Opening net book amount 18,030 22,009 40,039
Additions 79 - 79
Acquisition of subsidiary 3,582 - 3,582
Amortisation charge - (4,561) (4,561)
Closing net book amount 21,691 17,448 39,139

At 30 June 2006
Cost 21,691 37,973 59,664
Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (20,525) (20,525)
Net book amount 21,691 17,448 39,139

Parent entityConsolidated

The balance comprises temporary differences
attributable to:

Set off of deferred tax liabilities of parent entity pursuant to set
off provisions (note 23)
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17 Non current assets - Intangible assets (continued)
Goodwill Licences Total

$'000 $'000 $'000

Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount 21,691 17,448 39,139
Additions 13,046 - 13,046
Acquisition of subsidiary 6,651 - 6,651
Amortisation charge - (3,678) (3,678)
Closing net book amount 41,388 13,770 55,158

At 30 June 2007
Cost 41,388 37,973 79,361
Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (24,203) (24,203)
Net book amount 41,388 13,770 55,158

(a)

(b)

(c)

18 Non current assets - Available for sale financial assets

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

At beginning of year - - - -
Additions 10,845 - - -
At end of year 10,845 - - -

Unlisted securities (note (a))
Equity securities 10,845 - - -

10,845 - - -

(a)

The carrying amounts of goodwill as disclosed in the balance sheet are $34,737,000 for the Australian CGU and $6,651,000 for
the UK CGU.

Consolidated Parent entity

Unlisted securities

The recoverable amount on the CGU is determined based on a value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a perpetual growth rate of 1.5% pa.

Management determined assumptions on revenue growth, gross margin, overhead level, working capital and capital expenditure
have been determined based on past performance and expectations for the future. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with forecasts included in industry reports.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

In performing the value-in-use calculations, the company has applied a post tax discount rate to discount the forecast future
attributable post tax cash flows. The post tax discount rate used is an estimated WACC of 10.3%, which would translate into a
pre tax discount rate of 14.7%. Similar discount rates were used in 2005 and 2006.

Due to the level of integration and cross production in the plants and business units, goodwill has been allocated to the UK
operations and the balance of the Group, and the impairment testing has been performed on the two cash generating units (CGU)
being the UK operations and the balance of the Group.

The impairment testing highlights a reasonable buffer between the value-in-use amount and the net book value of assets of the
CGU. Significant changes in the major assumptions, which are not considered to be reasonably possible, would be required to
generate an impairment charge.

The amount shown as unlisted equity securities represents an initial investment of $7,625,000 in US Foundry group Americast in
November 2006, as well as additional equity of $3,220,000 in April 2007 for their acquisition of the Atlas Foundry group. The
investment is carried at fair value, which at 30 June 2007 is equal to the initial cost of the investment.
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19 Current liabilities - Trade and other payables

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Trade payables 64,947 48,617 - -
Other payables 9,167 4,892 - -

74,114 53,509 - -

20 Current liabilities - Borrowings

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Secured
Lease liabilities (note 31) 3,387 3,241 - -
Hire purchase liabilities (note 31) 1,010 1,001 - -
Total secured current borrowings 4,397 4,242 - -

Unsecured
Other loans 1,182 - - -
Total unsecured current borrowings 1,182 - - -

Total current borrowings 5,579 4,242 - -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

21 Current liabilities – Provisions

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Employee benefits 27,818 23,454 - -
Warranty 3,779 5,048 - -

31,597 28,502 - -

(a)

(b)

Consolidated - 2007 Warranty
Current $'000

Carrying amount at start of year 5,048
Additional provisions recognised 1,705
Amounts used (2,974)
Carrying amount at end of year 3,779

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below:

Details of the security relating to each of the secured liabilities and further information on the bank overdrafts and bank loans are
set out in note 22.

Consolidated

Provision is made for known warranty claims at balance date. Most claims are expected to be settled in the next financial year.
Management estimates the provision based on expected costs to be incurred to resolve the warranty claim.

Movements in provisions

Fair value disclosures

Security

Details of the Group's exposure to interest rate changes on interest bearing liabilities are set out in note 22.

Details of the fair value of interest bearing liabilities for the Group are set out in note 22.

Other loans are repayable within twelve months. The current interest rate on this loan is 6.15%.

Consolidated Parent entity

Interest rate risk exposures

Parent entity

Consolidated Parent entity

Other loans

Warranties
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19 Current liabilities - Trade and other payables

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Trade payables 64,947 48,617 - -
Other payables 9,167 4,892 - -

74,114 53,509 - -

20 Current liabilities - Borrowings

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Secured
Lease liabilities (note 31) 3,387 3,241 - -
Hire purchase liabilities (note 31) 1,010 1,001 - -
Total secured current borrowings 4,397 4,242 - -

Unsecured
Other loans 1,182 - - -
Total unsecured current borrowings 1,182 - - -

Total current borrowings 5,579 4,242 - -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

21 Current liabilities – Provisions

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Employee benefits 27,818 23,454 - -
Warranty 3,779 5,048 - -

31,597 28,502 - -

(a)

(b)

Consolidated - 2007 Warranty
Current $'000

Carrying amount at start of year 5,048
Additional provisions recognised 1,705
Amounts used (2,974)
Carrying amount at end of year 3,779

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below:

Details of the security relating to each of the secured liabilities and further information on the bank overdrafts and bank loans are
set out in note 22.

Consolidated

Provision is made for known warranty claims at balance date. Most claims are expected to be settled in the next financial year.
Management estimates the provision based on expected costs to be incurred to resolve the warranty claim.

Movements in provisions

Fair value disclosures

Security

Details of the Group's exposure to interest rate changes on interest bearing liabilities are set out in note 22.

Details of the fair value of interest bearing liabilities for the Group are set out in note 22.

Other loans are repayable within twelve months. The current interest rate on this loan is 6.15%.

Consolidated Parent entity

Interest rate risk exposures

Parent entity

Consolidated Parent entity

Other loans

Warranties
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19 Current liabilities - Trade and other payables

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Trade payables 64,947 48,617 - -
Other payables 9,167 4,892 - -

74,114 53,509 - -

20 Current liabilities - Borrowings

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Secured
Lease liabilities (note 31) 3,387 3,241 - -
Hire purchase liabilities (note 31) 1,010 1,001 - -
Total secured current borrowings 4,397 4,242 - -

Unsecured
Other loans 1,182 - - -
Total unsecured current borrowings 1,182 - - -

Total current borrowings 5,579 4,242 - -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

21 Current liabilities – Provisions

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Employee benefits 27,818 23,454 - -
Warranty 3,779 5,048 - -

31,597 28,502 - -

(a)

(b)

Consolidated - 2007 Warranty
Current $'000

Carrying amount at start of year 5,048
Additional provisions recognised 1,705
Amounts used (2,974)
Carrying amount at end of year 3,779

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below:

Details of the security relating to each of the secured liabilities and further information on the bank overdrafts and bank loans are
set out in note 22.

Consolidated

Provision is made for known warranty claims at balance date. Most claims are expected to be settled in the next financial year.
Management estimates the provision based on expected costs to be incurred to resolve the warranty claim.

Movements in provisions

Fair value disclosures

Security

Details of the Group's exposure to interest rate changes on interest bearing liabilities are set out in note 22.

Details of the fair value of interest bearing liabilities for the Group are set out in note 22.

Other loans are repayable within twelve months. The current interest rate on this loan is 6.15%.

Consolidated Parent entity

Interest rate risk exposures

Parent entity

Consolidated Parent entity

Other loans

Warranties
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22 Non current liabilities - Borrowings

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Secured
Bank loans 196,266 122,000 - -
Lease liabilities (note 31) 4,003 5,278 - -
Hire purchase liabilities (note 31) 2,263 2,955 - -
Total secured non-current interest bearing borrowings 202,532 130,233 - -

(a)
The total secured liabilities (current and non-current) are as follows:

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Bank loans 196,266 122,000 - -
Lease liabilities 7,390 8,519 - -
Hire purchase liabilities 3,273 3,956 - -
Total secured liabilities 206,929 134,475 - -

(b)

(c)

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Credit standby arrangements
Total facilities

Bank overdrafts 20,000 20,000 - -
Standby letters of credit and bank guarantees 40,000 40,000 - -

60,000 60,000 - -
Used at balance date

Bank overdrafts - - - -
Standby letters of credit and bank guarantees 15,531 16,390 - -

15,531 16,390 - -
Unused at balance date

Bank overdrafts 20,000 20,000 - -
Standby letters of credit and bank guarantees 24,469 23,610 - -

44,469 43,610 - -
Bank loan facilities
Total facilities 212,933 170,500 - -
Used at balance date 196,266 122,000 - -
Unused at balance date 16,667 48,500 - -

16,667 48,500 - -

Consolidated Parent entity

Financing arrangements
Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit:

Total secured liabilities

The current interest rates are 7.2% on the bank loans (2006: 6.0%).

Consolidated Parent entity

The standby letter of credit and bank guarantee facility is a bullet revolving working capital facility incorporating a bank overdraft
set-off component and a bank guarantee and letter of credit sub-component. The facility provides access to a line of credit up to
a limit of $60,000,000. The bank facility can be drawn at any time and has two tranches, one in Australian dollars and the other in
Great British Pounds, and has a maturity date of December 2009.

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets recognised in the financial statements revert to the
lessor in the event of default. Hire purchase liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the hire purchased assets
recognised in the financial statements under plant and equipment revert to the hirer in the event of default.
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non current liabilities are as disclosed in the balance sheet
less net book value amounts for finance lease assets $7,532,000 (2006: $8,709,000) and net book value amounts for hire
purchase assets $525,000 (2006: $556,000).

Parent entityConsolidated

Assets pledged as security

Bank loans are denominated in either Australian dollars or Great British Pounds.

In accordance with the security arrangements for the parent entity and subsidiaries bank loans, fixed and floating charges secure
all the assets and undertakings of the Group together with mortgages over all the Group's interest in real property.
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22 Non current liabilities - Borrowings (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk exposures

2007 Total
1 year or

less
Over 1 to
2 years

Over 2 to
3 years

Over 3 to
4 years

Over 4 to
5 years

Over 5
years

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

196,266 - - - - - - 196,266
- 1,182 - - - - - 1,182

- 3,387 2,584 1,297 120 2 - 7,390

- 829 838 836 770 - - 3,273

(47,000) 2,000 36,250 8,750 - - - -
(30,000) - - 30,000 - - - -
119,266 7,398 39,672 40,883 890 2 - 208,111

Weighted average interest rate 7% 7% 6% 7% 7% 9%

2006 Total
1 year or

less
Over 1 to
2 years

Over 2 to
3 years

Over 3 to
4 years

Over 4 to
5 years

Over 5
years

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

122,000 - - - - - - 122,000

- 3,241 2,615 1,861 797 5 - 8,519

- 866 875 883 882 450 - 3,956

(51,000) 4,000 2,000 36,250 8,750 - - -
71,000 8,107 5,490 38,994 10,429 455 - 134,475

Weighted average interest rate 6% 7% 7% 6% 6% 7%

(e) Fair value
The carrying amounts and fair values of interest bearing liabilities at balance date are:

On balance sheet
Non traded financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts
Bank loans
Other loans
Lease liabilities
Hire purchase liabilities

Fair value is inclusive of costs which would be incurred on settlement of a liability.
(i) On balance sheet

Floating
interest

rate

Fixed interest rate

122,000

Hire purchase liabilities (notes
20, 22 and 31)
Interest rate swaps (note 12)

20062007

$'000

Fair value

$'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying
amount

Fair value Carrying
amount

8,519

196,266

7,390
1,182 - -

122,000

8,519
3,956

134,475

The fair value of interest bearing liabilities is based upon market prices where a market exists or by discounting the expected
future cash flows by the current interest rates for liabilities with similar risk profiles.

3,273
208,111208,111

3,956
134,475

196,266

7,390
3,273

1,182

Hire purchase liabilities (notes
20, 22 and 31)
Interest rate swaps (note 12)

Bank overdrafts and loans (notes
20 and 22)
Lease liabilities (notes 20, 22
and 31)

Interest rate cap (note 12)

The following table sets out the Group's exposure to interest rate risk, including the contractual repricing dates and the effective
weighted average interest rate by maturity periods.
Exposures arise predominantly from liabilities bearing variable interest rates as the Group intends to hold fixed rate liabilities to
maturity.

Bank overdrafts and loans (notes
20 and 22)

Lease liabilities (notes 20, 22
and 31)

Floating
interest

rate

Fixed interest rate

Other loans (notes 20)

Notes to the financial statements
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(continued)

22 Non current liabilities - Borrowings (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk exposures

2007 Total
1 year or

less
Over 1 to
2 years

Over 2 to
3 years

Over 3 to
4 years

Over 4 to
5 years

Over 5
years

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

196,266 - - - - - - 196,266
- 1,182 - - - - - 1,182

- 3,387 2,584 1,297 120 2 - 7,390

- 829 838 836 770 - - 3,273

(47,000) 2,000 36,250 8,750 - - - -
(30,000) - - 30,000 - - - -
119,266 7,398 39,672 40,883 890 2 - 208,111

Weighted average interest rate 7% 7% 6% 7% 7% 9%

2006 Total
1 year or

less
Over 1 to
2 years

Over 2 to
3 years

Over 3 to
4 years

Over 4 to
5 years

Over 5
years

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

122,000 - - - - - - 122,000

- 3,241 2,615 1,861 797 5 - 8,519

- 866 875 883 882 450 - 3,956

(51,000) 4,000 2,000 36,250 8,750 - - -
71,000 8,107 5,490 38,994 10,429 455 - 134,475

Weighted average interest rate 6% 7% 7% 6% 6% 7%

(e) Fair value
The carrying amounts and fair values of interest bearing liabilities at balance date are:

On balance sheet
Non traded financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts
Bank loans
Other loans
Lease liabilities
Hire purchase liabilities

Fair value is inclusive of costs which would be incurred on settlement of a liability.
(i) On balance sheet

Floating
interest

rate

Fixed interest rate

122,000

Hire purchase liabilities (notes
20, 22 and 31)
Interest rate swaps (note 12)

20062007

$'000

Fair value

$'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying
amount

Fair value Carrying
amount

8,519

196,266

7,390
1,182 - -

122,000

8,519
3,956

134,475

The fair value of interest bearing liabilities is based upon market prices where a market exists or by discounting the expected
future cash flows by the current interest rates for liabilities with similar risk profiles.

3,273
208,111208,111

3,956
134,475

196,266

7,390
3,273

1,182

Hire purchase liabilities (notes
20, 22 and 31)
Interest rate swaps (note 12)

Bank overdrafts and loans (notes
20 and 22)
Lease liabilities (notes 20, 22
and 31)

Interest rate cap (note 12)

The following table sets out the Group's exposure to interest rate risk, including the contractual repricing dates and the effective
weighted average interest rate by maturity periods.
Exposures arise predominantly from liabilities bearing variable interest rates as the Group intends to hold fixed rate liabilities to
maturity.

Bank overdrafts and loans (notes
20 and 22)

Lease liabilities (notes 20, 22
and 31)

Floating
interest

rate

Fixed interest rate

Other loans (notes 20)
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22 Non current liabilities - Borrowings (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk exposures

2007 Total
1 year or

less
Over 1 to
2 years

Over 2 to
3 years

Over 3 to
4 years

Over 4 to
5 years

Over 5
years

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

196,266 - - - - - - 196,266
- 1,182 - - - - - 1,182

- 3,387 2,584 1,297 120 2 - 7,390

- 829 838 836 770 - - 3,273

(47,000) 2,000 36,250 8,750 - - - -
(30,000) - - 30,000 - - - -
119,266 7,398 39,672 40,883 890 2 - 208,111

Weighted average interest rate 7% 7% 6% 7% 7% 9%

2006 Total
1 year or

less
Over 1 to
2 years

Over 2 to
3 years

Over 3 to
4 years

Over 4 to
5 years

Over 5
years

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

122,000 - - - - - - 122,000

- 3,241 2,615 1,861 797 5 - 8,519

- 866 875 883 882 450 - 3,956

(51,000) 4,000 2,000 36,250 8,750 - - -
71,000 8,107 5,490 38,994 10,429 455 - 134,475

Weighted average interest rate 6% 7% 7% 6% 6% 7%

(e) Fair value
The carrying amounts and fair values of interest bearing liabilities at balance date are:

On balance sheet
Non traded financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts
Bank loans
Other loans
Lease liabilities
Hire purchase liabilities

Fair value is inclusive of costs which would be incurred on settlement of a liability.
(i) On balance sheet

Floating
interest

rate

Fixed interest rate

122,000

Hire purchase liabilities (notes
20, 22 and 31)
Interest rate swaps (note 12)

20062007

$'000

Fair value

$'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying
amount

Fair value Carrying
amount

8,519

196,266

7,390
1,182 - -

122,000

8,519
3,956

134,475

The fair value of interest bearing liabilities is based upon market prices where a market exists or by discounting the expected
future cash flows by the current interest rates for liabilities with similar risk profiles.

3,273
208,111208,111

3,956
134,475

196,266

7,390
3,273

1,182

Hire purchase liabilities (notes
20, 22 and 31)
Interest rate swaps (note 12)

Bank overdrafts and loans (notes
20 and 22)
Lease liabilities (notes 20, 22
and 31)

Interest rate cap (note 12)

The following table sets out the Group's exposure to interest rate risk, including the contractual repricing dates and the effective
weighted average interest rate by maturity periods.
Exposures arise predominantly from liabilities bearing variable interest rates as the Group intends to hold fixed rate liabilities to
maturity.

Bank overdrafts and loans (notes
20 and 22)

Lease liabilities (notes 20, 22
and 31)

Floating
interest

rate

Fixed interest rate

Other loans (notes 20)
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22 Non current liabilities - Borrowings (continued)

(ii) Off balance sheet

23 Non current liabilities - Deferred tax liabilities

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Unrealised foreign exchange differences 276 - - -
Leased assets 68 73 - -
Depreciation 3,403 2,361 - -

3,747 2,434 - -

Amounts recognised directly in equity
Cash flow hedges 256 61 - -

256 61 - -

4,003 2,495 - -

(4,003) (2,495) - -
Net deferred tax liabilities - - - -

Movements:

Opening balance at 1 July 2,495 2,222 - -
Charged/(credited) to the income statement (note 8) 678 212 - -
Charged/(credited) to equity (notes 25 and 26) 195 61 - -
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 33) 635 - - -
Closing balance at 30 June 4,003 2,495 - -

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than 12 months 2,698 2,228 - -
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months 1,305 267 - -

4,003 2,495 - -

24 Non current liabilities - Provisions

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Employee benefits 2,627 2,544 - -
Warranty 615 615 - -

3,242 3,159 - -

Consolidated - 2007 Warranty Total
Non current $'000 $'000

Carrying amount at start of year 615 615
Carrying amount at end of year 615 615

The parent entity and certain controlled entities have potential financial liabilities which may arise from certain contingencies
disclosed in note 30. As explained in those notes, no material losses are anticipated in respect of any of those contingencies.

Consolidated Parent entity

The balance comprises temporary
differences attributable to:

Set off of deferred tax liabilities of parent entity pursuant
to set off provisions (note 16)

Consolidated Parent entity
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25 Contributed equity

2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes Shares Shares $'000 $'000

(a)
Ordinary shares (b),(c)

Fully paid 106,072,655 105,817,648 249,306 248,959

Total contributed equity 249,306 248,959

(b)

Date Notes
Number
of shares Issue price

Parent entity
$'000

102,766,699 237,453
(e) 6,448 $2.82 18
(g) 10,490 $2.92 31
(d) 1,740,216 $3.17 5,518
(f) 23,089 $4.08 94

(f) 33,198 $4.05 135

(f) 3,706 $4.75 18

(g) 9,793 $4.43 43
318,167 $4.71 1,500

(d) 905,842 $4.58 4,149
105,817,648 248,959

(f) 250,306 336

(f) 4,701 11

106,072,655 249,306

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

30 June 2007 Balance

4 September 2006 Exercise of Rights - transfer from Share Based
Payments Reserve

30 October 2006 Exercise of Rights - transfer from Share Based
Payments Reserve

Parent entity Parent entity

Share capital

Movements in ordinary share capital:

Details

1 July 2005 Opening balance

3 August 2005 Employee gift offer (New Zealand)

10 October 2005 Non-exec. director share acquisition plan issues

24 October 2005 Dividend reinvestment plan issues

25 November 2005 Exercise of Rights - transfer from Share Based
Payments Reserve

12 December 2005 Exercise of Rights - transfer from Share Based
Payments Reserve

9 March 2006 Exercise of Rights - transfer from Share Based
Payments Reserve

23 March 2006 Non-exec. director share acquisition plan issues

31 March 2006 Issue of shares as part of the purchase
consideration for GW Brown Pty Ltd

4 April 2006 Dividend reinvestment plan issues

30 June 2006 Balance

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company in proportion to the
number of and amounts paid on the shares held.
On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon
a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

Dividend reinvestment plan
The company has established a dividend reinvestment plan under which holders of ordinary shares may elect to have all or part
of their dividend entitlements satisfied by the issue of new ordinary shares rather than by being paid in cash. Shares have been
issued under the plan at a 2.5% discount to the market price. The plan has been suspended effective from the final dividend
payable in respect to the year ended 30 June 2006.

Employee share scheme
Information relating to the employee share scheme, including details of shares issued under the scheme, is set out in note 39.

Performance Rights Plan
Information relating to the Performance Rights Plan, including details of shares issued under the plan, is set out in note 39.

Non-executive director share acquisition plan
Information relating to the non-exective director share acquisition plan, including details of shares issued under the plan, is set
out in note 39.



BRADKEN LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007   86

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2007

(continued)

26 Reserves and retained profits

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(a)
Hedging reserve - cash flow hedges 598 143 - -
Share based payments reserve 1,226 362 1,226 362
Foreign currency translation reserve (1,133) (460) - -

691 45 1,226 362

Movements:
Hedging reserve - cash flow hedges

Balance 1 July 143 - - -

- (610) - -
Revaluation-gross (note 12) 650 1,076 - -
Deferred tax (note 23) (195) (323) - -
Balance 30 June 598 143 - -

Share-based payments reserve
Balance 1 July 362 130 362 130
Rights expense 1,211 479 1,211 479
Transfer to share capital (Rights exercised) (347) (247) (347) (247)
Balance 30 June 1,226 362 1,226 362

Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance 1 July (460) (430) - -
Currency translation differences arising during the year (673) (30) - -
Balance 30 June (1,133) (460) - -

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

(b)

Balance 1 July 51,820 37,307 15,064 -
Net profit for the year 49,092 33,897 35,000 34,457
Dividends (27,579) (19,384) (27,579) (19,393)
Balance 30 June 73,333 51,820 22,485 15,064

(c)
(i) Hedging reserve - cash flow hedges

(ii) Share-based payments reserve

(iii) Foreign currency translation reserve

Consolidated Parent entity

Reserves

Adjustment on adoption of AASB 132 and AASB 139,
net of tax (note 12)

Consolidated Parent entity

Retained profits

Nature and purpose of reserves

The hedging reserve is used to record gains or losses on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that are recognised directly
in equity, as described in note 1(n). Amounts are recognised in profit and loss when the associated hedged transaction affects
profit and loss.

The share based payments reserve is used to recognise the fair value of Rights issued but not exercised.

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign controlled entity are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve,
as described in note 1(d). The reserve is recognised in profit and loss when the net investment is disposed of.
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27 Dividends

2007 2006

$'000 $'000

(a) Ordinary shares

12,198 9,457

15,381 9,936
27,579 19,393

27,579 9,725
- 9,668

27,579 19,393

(b) Dividends not recognised at year end

18,032 12,169

(c) Franked dividends

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

22,938 16,456 22,938 16,456

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the financial year, adjusted for:
(a) franking credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax
(b) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting date, and
(c) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date.

Parent entity

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2006 of 11.5 cents (2005: 9.2 cents) per fully paid
share paid on 13 October 2006 (2005: 12 October 2005)

Fully franked based on tax paid @ 30%

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2007 of 14.5 cents (2006: 9.5 cents) per fully paid
share paid 13 March 2007 (2006: 30 March 2006)

Fully franked based on tax paid @ 30% (2005: fully franked @ 30%)
Total dividends provided for or paid

Dividends paid in cash or satisfied by the issue of shares under the dividend reinvestment plan
during the years ended 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2007 were as follows:

Paid in cash
Satisfied by issue of shares

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended the payment
of a final dividend of 17.0 cents per fully paid ordinary share, (2006: 11.5 cents) fully franked
based on tax paid at 30%. The aggregate amount of the proposed dividend expected to be paid
on 4 September 2007 out of retained profits at 30 June 2007, but not recognised as a liability at
year end, is

The franked portions of the final dividends recommended after 30 June 2007 will be franked out of existing franking credits or out
of franking credits arising from the payment of income tax in the year ending 30 June 2008.

Consolidated Parent entity

Franking credits available for subsequent financial years based
on a tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%)

The impact on the franking account of the dividend recommended by the directors since year end, but not recognised as a liability
at year end, will be a reduction in the franking account of $7,728,000 (2006: $5,215,000).
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28 Key management personnel disclosures

(a) Directors
The following persons were directors of Bradken Limited during the financial year:

(i) Chairman - non-executive
N F H Greiner

(ii) Executive director
B W Hodges, Managing Director

(iii) Non executive directors
P J Arnall
V J O'Rourke
G R Laurie

(b) Other key management personnel

Name Position Employer

A J Allen General Manager - Industrial Bradken Resources Pty Ltd

B D Arnott Chief Financial Officer Bradken Resources Pty Ltd

C Burdon General Manager - Power & Cement Bradken UK Limited

S D Burraston General Manager - Rail Bradken Resources Pty Ltd

E P Sheridan General Manager - Mining Bradken Resources Pty Ltd

B J Ward General Manager - Mineral Processing Bradken Resources Pty Ltd

(c) Key management personnel compensation

2007 2006 2007 2006

3,568,481 2,473,138 - -
533,937 530,467 - -
653,525 343,676 - -

4,755,943 3,347,281 - -

(d) Equity instrument disclosures relating to key management personnel
(i) Rights provided as remuneration and shares issued on exercise of rights

The following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, during the financial year:

All of the above persons were also key management persons during the year ended 30 June 2006 except for C Burdon who
commenced with Bradken on 11 December 2006 following the acquisition of Firth Rixson Castings Limited, now Bradken UK
Limited.

Consolidated Parent entity

The company has taken advantage of the relief provided by Corporations Regulation 2M.6.04 and has transferred the detailed
remuneration disclosures to the directors' report. The relevant information can be found in sections (a) to (d) of the remuneration
report on pages 39 to 45.

Details of Performance Rights provided as remuneration and shares issued on the exercise of such Rights, together with terms
and conditions of the Rights, can be found in section (d) of the remuneration report on pages 42 to 45.

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments
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28 Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

(ii) Rights holdings

Balance at the
start of the year

Granted during
the year as

compensation
Exercised during

the year
Other changes
during the year

Balance at the
end of the year

Vested and
exercisable at
the end of the

year *

Directors of Bradken Limited
B W Hodges 152,839 107,731 (65,206) - 195,364 -
Other key management personnel of the Group
A J Allen 40,383 25,118 (17,272) - 48,229 -
B D Arnott 30,822 31,135 (10,274) - 51,683 -
C Burdon - 12,001 - - 12,001 -
S D Burraston 49,189 24,493 (24,759) - 48,923 -
E P Sheridan 41,412 28,012 (17,614) - 51,810 -
B J Ward 33,902 21,731 (14,302) - 41,331 -

Balance at the
start of the year

Granted during
the year as

compensation
Exercised during

the year
Other changes
during the year

Balance at the
end of the year

Vested and
exercisable at
the end of the

year *

Directors of Bradken Limited
B W Hodges 91,667 85,616 (24,444) - 152,839 -
Other key management personnel of the Group
A J Allen 24,499 22,417 (6,533) - 40,383 -
B D Arnott - 30,822 - 30,822 -
S D Burraston 25,087 24,102 - - 49,189 -
A J Poole 26,583 - (7,088) (19,495) - -
E P Sheridan 24,490 23,452 (6,530) - 41,412 -
B J Ward 19,288 19,757 (5,143) - 33,902 -

(iii) Share holdings

Balance at the
start of the year

Received during
the year from

Non-Executive
Director Share

Acquisition Plan

Received during
the year on
exercise of

Rights
Other changes
during the year

Balance at the
end of the year

Directors of Bradken Limited
N F H Greiner 250,753 6,061 - - 256,814
B W Hodges 2,648,167 - 65,206 - 2,713,373
P J Arnall 690,135 - - (190,134) 500,001
G R Laurie 12,878 3,447 - - 16,325
V J O'Rourke 28,754 3,181 - (9) 31,926
Other key management personnel of the Group
A J Allen 298,675 - 17,272 (41,546) 274,401
B D Arnott 5,103 - 10,274 9,323 24,700
S D Burraston 158,333 - 24,759 (13,806) 169,286
E P Sheridan 424,887 - 17,614 15,174 457,675
B J Ward 16,629 - 14,302 7,483 38,414

2007

Name

The number of Rights over ordinary shares in the company held during the financial year by each director of Bradken Limited and
other key management personnel of the Group, including their personally related entities, are set out below.

The number of shares in the company held during the financial year by each director of Bradken Limited and other key
management personnel of the Group, including their personally related entities, are set out below. There were no shares granted
during the year as compensation.

2007

Name

2006

Name

* For year end 30 June 2006 a number of rights were shown as vested and exercisable at the end of the year. These have been
adjusted as the testing date to determine the actual number to vest did not occur until 24 August 2006. The table above has been
amended to reflect the correct position at 30 June 2006. Vesting for the performance period to 30 June 2007 will occur following
the test date on 7 August 2007.
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28 Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

(iii) Share holdings (continued)

Balance at the
start of the year

Received during
the year from

Non-Executive
Director Share

Acquisition Plan

Received during
the year on
exercise of

Rights
Other changes
during the year

Balance at the
end of the year

Directors of Bradken Limited
N F H Greiner 227,491 11,367 - 11,895 250,753
B W Hodges 2,623,723 - 24,444 - 2,648,167
P J Arnall 690,135 - - - 690,135
G R Laurie - 2,878 - 10,000 12,878
V J O'Rourke 12,500 6,038 - 10,216 28,754
Other key management personnel of the Group
A J Allen 292,142 - 6,533 - 298,675
B D Arnott - - - 5,103 5,103
S D Burraston 208,333 - - (50,000) 158,333
A J Poole 1,263,402 - 7,088 (1,270,490) -
E P Sheridan 418,357 - 6,530 - 424,887
B J Ward 10,416 - 5,143 1,070 16,629

2006

Name
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29 Remuneration of auditors

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $

(a) Assurance services
Audit services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:

222,750 188,000 - -
Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm 70,721 - - -

18,966 17,563 - -
312,437 205,563 - -

Other assurance services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:

12,000 30,000 - -
12,000 30,000 - -

Total remuneration for assurance services 324,437 235,563 - -

(b) Taxation services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm:

22,870 81,765 - -

43,327 61,761 - -
Non-PricewaterhouseCoopers audit firm (Deloittes NZ) 4,653 5,616 - -
Total remuneration for taxation services 70,850 149,142 - -

Tax compliance services, including review of company
income tax returns
International tax consulting and tax advice on mergers and
acquisitions

Audit and review of financial reports and other audit work
under Corporations Act 2001

Non-PricewaterhouseCoopers audit firm (Deloittes NZ)

Total remuneration for other assurance services

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent entity, its related
practices and non related audit firms:

It is the Group’s policy to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ expertise and experience with the Group are important. These assignments are principally tax advice
and due diligence reporting on acquisitions, or where PricewaterhouseCoopers is awarded assignments on a competitive basis.
It is the Group’s policy to seek competitive tenders for all major consulting projects.

Parent entityConsolidated

Total remuneration for audit services

IFRS accounting services
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30 Contingencies

(a) Contingent Liabilities
The parent entity and Group had contingent liabilities at 30 June 2007 in respect of:

Claims

In addition, the parent entity had contingent liabilities at 30 June 2007 and 2006 in respect of:

Guarantees and letters of credit

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Bank guarantees for contract performance 12,212 14,118 - -
Letters of credit 3,319 2,272 - -
Total estimated contingent liabilities 15,531 16,390 - -

No material losses are anticipated in respect of any of the above contingent liabilities.

31 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Land & buildings
Payable:
Within one year 3,132 - - -

3,132 - - -
Property, plant and equipment
Payable:
Within one year 10,332 4,570 - -

10,332 4,570 - -

(b) Lease and hire purchase commitments

Within one year 2,104 2,639 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 2,462 3,884 - -
Later than five years 73 1,594 - -

4,639 8,117 - -
Representing:
Non cancellable operating leases 3,608 6,683 - -
Future finance charges on finance leases 821 1,143 - -
Future finance charges on hire purchases 210 291 - -

4,639 8,117 - -

Consolidated

The Bradken Group has been involved from time to time in various claims and lawsuits incidental to the ordinary course of
business, including damages and commercial disputes relating to its products and services. The Group has disclaimed liability
and will defend any action flowing from specific claims. It is not practical to estimate the potential effect of these claims but legal
advice obtained indicates that any liability that may arise in the unlikely event these claims are successful will not be significant.

A subsidiary of the Company is party to a joint warranty claim relating to the supply of railway bogies in 2002 and 2003 to
Queensland Rail. An agreement was reached between all parties to the dispute and the rectification work is substantially
complete. The Directors believe that the 30 June 2007 Financial Report adequately reflects the impact of known and anticipated
remaining costs in respect of the claim.

Cross guarantees given by Bradken Limited, Bradken Holdings Limited, Bradken SPV Pty Limited, Bradken Operations Pty
Limited, Bradken Resources Pty Limited are described in note 35. No deficiencies of assets exist in any of these companies.

Parent entity

Parent entity

These guarantees may give rise to liabilities in the parent entity if the subsidiaries do not meet their obligations under the terms
of their liabilities subject to the guarantees.

Consolidated

Commitments in relation to leases and hire purchases contracted
for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:
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30 Contingencies

(a) Contingent Liabilities
The parent entity and Group had contingent liabilities at 30 June 2007 in respect of:

Claims

In addition, the parent entity had contingent liabilities at 30 June 2007 and 2006 in respect of:

Guarantees and letters of credit

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Bank guarantees for contract performance 12,212 14,118 - -
Letters of credit 3,319 2,272 - -
Total estimated contingent liabilities 15,531 16,390 - -

No material losses are anticipated in respect of any of the above contingent liabilities.

31 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Land & buildings
Payable:
Within one year 3,132 - - -

3,132 - - -
Property, plant and equipment
Payable:
Within one year 10,332 4,570 - -

10,332 4,570 - -

(b) Lease and hire purchase commitments

Within one year 2,104 2,639 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 2,462 3,884 - -
Later than five years 73 1,594 - -

4,639 8,117 - -
Representing:
Non cancellable operating leases 3,608 6,683 - -
Future finance charges on finance leases 821 1,143 - -
Future finance charges on hire purchases 210 291 - -

4,639 8,117 - -

Consolidated

The Bradken Group has been involved from time to time in various claims and lawsuits incidental to the ordinary course of
business, including damages and commercial disputes relating to its products and services. The Group has disclaimed liability
and will defend any action flowing from specific claims. It is not practical to estimate the potential effect of these claims but legal
advice obtained indicates that any liability that may arise in the unlikely event these claims are successful will not be significant.

A subsidiary of the Company is party to a joint warranty claim relating to the supply of railway bogies in 2002 and 2003 to
Queensland Rail. An agreement was reached between all parties to the dispute and the rectification work is substantially
complete. The Directors believe that the 30 June 2007 Financial Report adequately reflects the impact of known and anticipated
remaining costs in respect of the claim.

Cross guarantees given by Bradken Limited, Bradken Holdings Limited, Bradken SPV Pty Limited, Bradken Operations Pty
Limited, Bradken Resources Pty Limited are described in note 35. No deficiencies of assets exist in any of these companies.

Parent entity

Parent entity

These guarantees may give rise to liabilities in the parent entity if the subsidiaries do not meet their obligations under the terms
of their liabilities subject to the guarantees.

Consolidated

Commitments in relation to leases and hire purchases contracted
for at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:
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31 Commitments (continued)

(i) Operating leases

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Within one year 1,539 1,959 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,996 3,130 - -
Later than five years 73 1,594 - -

3,608 6,683 - -

(ii) Finance leases

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Within one year 3,882 3,842 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 4,329 5,820 - -
Minimum lease payments 8,211 9,662 - -
Future finance charges (821) (1,143) - -
Total lease liabilities 7,390 8,519 - -
Representing lease liabilities:
Current (note 20) 3,387 3,241 - -
Non current (note 22) 4,003 5,278 - -

7,390 8,519 - -

(iii) Hire purchase payment commitments

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Within one year 899 899 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 2,584 3,348 - -
Minimum lease payments 3,483 4,247 - -
Future finance charges (210) (291) - -
Total lease liabilities 3,273 3,956 - -
Representing lease liabilities:
Current (note 20) 1,010 1,001 - -
Non current (note 22) 2,263 2,955 - -

3,273 3,956 - -

Commitments in relation to hire purchases are payable as
follows:

Commitments in relation to finance leases are payable as
follows:

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

The Group leases various plant and equipment with a carrying amount of $7,532,000 (2006: $8,709,000) under finance leases
expiring within three to five years. Under the terms of the leases, the Group has the option to acquire some of the leased assets
on expiry of the leases.

The Group has acquired some production plant and equipment under hire purchase arrangements with a final payment in May
2010.

Consolidated Parent entity

The weighted average interest rate implicit in the agreement is 6.67% (2006: 6.67%).

Operating leases relate to factories and plant and equipment with lease terms generally between 1 to 5 years with a small
amount being payable over greater than 5 years. Leases generally provide the consolidated entity with a right of renewal at
which time all terms are renegotiated.

Consolidated Parent entity

Consolidated Parent entity

The weighted average interest rate implicit in the leases is 8.50% (2006: 8.50%).
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32 Related party transactions

(a) Parent entities
The ultimate parent entity within the Group is Bradken Limited.

(b) Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

(c) Key management personnel
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 28.

(d) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $

Tax consolidation legislation

- - 11,150,819 10,385,891

Dividend revenue

- - 35,000,000 34,456,097

(e) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $

Current receivables (tax funding agreement)

- - 11,150,819 10,385,891

(f) Loans to/from related parties

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $

Loans to subsidiaries
Beginning of the year - - 102,477,957 71,851,427
Loans received - - 9,397,396 30,626,530
End of year - - 111,875,353 102,477,957

(g) Terms and conditions

Consolidated

All other transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, except that there are no fixed
terms for the repayment of loans between the parties. Outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable at call in cash.

Subsidiaries

Consolidated Parent entity

Consolidated Parent entity

Current tax payable assumed from wholly-owned tax
consolidated entities

Wholly-owned tax consolidated entities

No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised
in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.

Parent entity

No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised
in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.

Transactions relating to dividends were on the same conditions that applied to other shareholders.
The terms and conditions of the tax funding agreement are set out in note 8(d).
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33 Business combination

(a) Summary of acquisitions and assets and liabilities acquired
(i) Wundowie Foundry Pty Ltd

$'000

Purchase consideration
Cash paid 6,398
Direct costs relating to the acquisition 575

Total purchase consideration 6,973
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (refer below) 5,939
Goodwill 1,034

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
$'000 $'000

Cash and cash equivalents 642 642

Property, plant and equipment 1,447 4,447

Other current assets 273 273

Inventories 2,657 2,657

Receivables 3,517 3,517

Payables (3,698) (3,698)

Current tax liabilities 52 52

Employee benefit liabilities, including superannuation (362) (362)

Borrowings (2,000) (2,000)
Net deferred tax assets 411 411
Net identifiable assets acquired 2,939 5,939

(ii) Firth Rixson Castings Limited

$'000

Purchase consideration
Cash paid 19,776
Direct costs relating to the acquisition 791

Total purchase consideration 20,567
Provisional fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (refer below) 13,916
Provisional goodwill 6,651

Details of provisional net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

On 14 November 2006 Bradken Operations Pty Ltd (a 100% subsidiary of Bradken Limited) acquired all of the issued shares in
Wundowie Foundry Pty Ltd, a manufacturer of cast products, for cash consideration of $6,398,000.
Disclosure of the revenue and the profit and loss as if the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2006 has not been included as it is
impractical to do so.
Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

The goodwill is attributable to the profitability of the acquired business and synergies expected to arise after the company's
acquisition of the new subsidiary. The fair value plant & equipment is based on an independent valuation. The fair value of
other assets and liabilities are based on current book values. No acquisition provisions were created.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

On 11 December 2006 Bradken Operations Pty Ltd (a 100% subsidiary of Bradken Limited) acquired all of the issued shares in
Firth Rixson Castings Limited, a manufacturer of cast products, for cash consideration of $19,776,000.
Disclosure of the revenue and the profit and loss as if the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2006 has not been included as it is
impractical to do so.

Following the transfer of all it's assets to Bradken Resources Pty Ltd, Wundowie Foundry Pty Ltd was sold on 31 January 2007.
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33 Business combination (continued)

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount

Provisional
fair value

$'000 $'000

Property, plant and equipment 16,407 23,314
Inventories 10,182 10,182
Receivables 11,626 11,626
Cash on hand 5 5
Payables (9,945) (9,945)
Provisions (211) (211)
Employee benefit liabilities, including superannuation (117) (117)
Bank overdraft (516) (516)
Borrowings (21,973) (21,973)
Current tax liability 448 448
Net deferred tax assets 1,738 1,738
Deferred tax liabilities (635) (635)
Net identifiable assets acquired 7,009 13,916

(iii) Boogan Implement Company

$'000

Purchase consideration
Cash paid 16,892
Direct costs relating to the acquisition 872

Total purchase consideration 17,764
Provisional fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (refer below) 5,667
Provisional goodwill 12,097

The provisional goodwill is attributable to the profitability of the acquired business and synergies expected to arise after the
company's acquisition of the new subsidiary. The provisional fair value plant & equipment is based on an independent valuation.
The provisional fair value of other assets and liabilities are based on current book values. No acquisition provisions were
created.
The values have not been finalised as there are a small amount of costs outstanding. The provisional fair value will be finalised
and any adjustments disclosed in the Group's financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2008.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

On 30 March 2007 Bradken Resources Pty Ltd (a 100% subsidiary of Bradken Limited) acquired the assets of the Boogan
Implement Company, a manufacturer of consumable and engineered products, for cash consideration of $16,892,000.
Details of provisional net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

The provisional goodwill is attributable to the profitability of the acquired business and synergies expected to arise after the
company's acquisition of the assets of the business. The provisional fair value plant & equipment is based on an independent
valuation. The provisional fair value of other assets and liabilities are based on current book values and are in the process of
being finalised. No acquisition provisions were created. The provisional fair value will be finalised and any adjustments
disclosed in the Group's financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2008.
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33 Business combination (continued)

Provisional
fair value
$'000

Property, plant and equipment 3,210
Inventories 1,853
Receivables 2,155
Payables (1,387)
Employee benefit liabilities, including superannuation (234)
Net deferred tax assets 70
Net identifiable assets acquired 5,667

(b) Purchase consideration

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Cash consideration 41,638 2,822 - -
Less: Balances acquired
Cash 647 - - -
Bank overdraft (516) (113) - -

131 (113) - -
Outflow of cash 41,507 2,935 - -

34 Subsidiaries

Name of entity Country of
incorporation

Class of
shares

Equity holding **

2007 2006

% %

Bradken Holdings Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken SPV Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken Operations Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken Resources Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken Finance Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken Mining SPV Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
G W Brown and Co Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
ANI Chile Ingenieria Limitada Chile Ordinary 100 100
Bradken UK Limited (formerly Firth Rixson Castings Limited) UK Ordinary 100 0
Bradken (Xuzhou) Metal Equipment Manufacturing Company Limited China Ordinary 100 0

*

**

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Consolidated Parent entity

The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.

At the date of this financial report additional amounts were payable of $1,200,000 in respect to the acquisition of Wundowie
Foundry Pty Ltd and $2,466,000 in respect to the acquisition of the Boogan Implement Company. These payments have been
brought to account in the calculation of the goodwill values disclosed in (i) and (iii) above.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in accordance
with the accounting policy described in note 1(b):

These subsidiaries have been granted relief from the necessity to prepare financial reports in accordance with Class Order
98/1418 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission. For further information refer to note 35.

Following the transfer of all it's assets to Bradken Resources Pty Ltd, Wundowie Foundry Pty Ltd which was purchased on 14 November 2006, was sold on 31
January 2007.

The acquiree’s carrying values of assets and liabilities has not been disclosed as it is impractical to do so.
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33 Business combination (continued)

Provisional
fair value
$'000

Property, plant and equipment 3,210
Inventories 1,853
Receivables 2,155
Payables (1,387)
Employee benefit liabilities, including superannuation (234)
Net deferred tax assets 70
Net identifiable assets acquired 5,667

(b) Purchase consideration

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Cash consideration 41,638 2,822 - -
Less: Balances acquired
Cash 647 - - -
Bank overdraft (516) (113) - -

131 (113) - -
Outflow of cash 41,507 2,935 - -

34 Subsidiaries

Name of entity Country of
incorporation

Class of
shares

Equity holding **

2007 2006

% %

Bradken Holdings Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken SPV Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken Operations Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken Resources Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken Finance Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Bradken Mining SPV Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
G W Brown and Co Pty Limited * Australia Ordinary 100 100
ANI Chile Ingenieria Limitada Chile Ordinary 100 100
Bradken UK Limited (formerly Firth Rixson Castings Limited) UK Ordinary 100 0
Bradken (Xuzhou) Metal Equipment Manufacturing Company Limited China Ordinary 100 0

*

**

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Consolidated Parent entity

The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.

At the date of this financial report additional amounts were payable of $1,200,000 in respect to the acquisition of Wundowie
Foundry Pty Ltd and $2,466,000 in respect to the acquisition of the Boogan Implement Company. These payments have been
brought to account in the calculation of the goodwill values disclosed in (i) and (iii) above.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in accordance
with the accounting policy described in note 1(b):

These subsidiaries have been granted relief from the necessity to prepare financial reports in accordance with Class Order
98/1418 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission. For further information refer to note 35.

Following the transfer of all it's assets to Bradken Resources Pty Ltd, Wundowie Foundry Pty Ltd which was purchased on 14 November 2006, was sold on 31
January 2007.

The acquiree’s carrying values of assets and liabilities has not been disclosed as it is impractical to do so.
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35 Deed of cross guarantee

The companies subject to the Deed are:
 Bradken Limited
 Bradken Holdings Limited
 Bradken SPV Pty Limited
 Bradken Operations Pty Limited
 Bradken Resources Pty Limited
 Bradken Finance Pty Limited
 Bradken Mining SPV Pty Limited

 G W Brown and Co Pty Limited
 ANI Chile Ingenieria Limitada
 Bradken UK Limited (formerly Firth Rixson Castings Limited)
 Bradken (Xuzhou) Metal Equipment Manufacturing Company Limited

(a) Consolidated income statement and a summary of movements in consolidated retained profits

2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Income statement
Revenue from continuing operations 612,854 548,664
Cost of sales (476,336) (441,815)

Gross profit 136,518 106,849
Other income 1,514 -
Selling and technical expenses (29,342) (24,104)
Administration expenses (27,137) (22,738)
Borrowing costs (12,315) (11,930)

Profit before income tax 69,238 48,077
Income tax expense (20,564) (14,388)
Profit for the year 48,674 33,689

Summary of movements in consolidated retained profits
Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year 52,189 37,884
Profit for the year 48,674 33,689
Dividends provided for or paid (27,579) (19,384)
Retained profits at the end of the financial year 73,284 52,189

Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998, the wholly-owned subsidiaries listed below are
relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit, and lodgement of financial reports, and directors’
report. It is a condition of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of Cross Guarantee.

Set out below is a consolidated income statement and a summary of movements in consolidated retained profits for the year
ended 30 June 2007 of the Closed Group outlined above.

The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in the event of winding up of
any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the Corporations Act 2001. If a winding up occurs under other provisions of
the Act 2001, the Company will only be liable in the event that after six months any creditor has not been paid in full. The
subsidiaries have also given similar guarantees in the event that the Company is wound up.

The above companies represent a ‘Closed Group’ for the purposes of the Class Order, and as there are no other parties to the
Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Bradken Limited, they also represent the ‘Extended Closed Group’.

The companies above, with the exception of Bradken Finance Pty Ltd and Bradken Mining SPV Pty Ltd, became a party to the
Deed on 12 May 2005. Bradken Finance Pty Ltd and Bradken Mining SPV Pty Ltd, became a party to the Deed on 10 November
2005.

The following entities, wholly owned and controlled by Bradken Limited, are not a party to the Deed of Cross Guarantee:
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35 Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

(b) Balance sheet

2007 2006
$'000 $'000

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,719 19,948
Trade and other receivables 99,767 58,240
Inventories 80,183 74,505
Derivative financial instruments 854 204
Total current assets 192,523 152,897

Non-current assets
Receivables 3,155 4,173
Available for sale financial assets 10,845 -
Property, plant and equipment 181,609 150,880
Intangible assets 49,491 38,005
Deferred tax assets 14,031 18,908
Other financial assets 25,718 -
Total non-current assets 284,849 211,966

Total assets 477,372 364,863

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 64,822 53,106
Borrowings 5,579 4,242
Current tax liabilities 10,984 10,094
Provisions 31,224 28,444
Derivative financial instruments 150 192
Total Current Liabilities 112,759 96,078

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 202,532 130,233
Deferred tax liabilities - 2,495
Provisions 3,242 3,159
Total non-current liabilities 205,774 135,887

Total liabilities 318,533 231,965

Net assets 158,839 132,898

Equity
Contributed equity 83,685 81,437
Reserves 1,870 433
Retained profits 73,284 51,028
Total equity 158,839 132,898

Set out below is a consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2007 for the Closed Group outlined above.
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36 Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

49,092 33,897 35,000 34,457
19,960 17,570 - -
778 1,159 - -

1,211 584 1,211 584
(673) 502 - -
(644) 179 - -

(10,380) 8,019 - -
(1,558) 506 - -

(650) (204) (36,211) (35,041)

2,600 2,392 - -
3,268 (355) - -
(42) 192 - -
522 3,655 - -
873 274 - -
891 (685) - -

65,248 67,685 - -

37 Non cash investing and financing activities

2007 2006 2007 2006

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Acquisition of plant and equipment by means of finance leases 2,403 5,437 - -
Acquisition of plant and equipment by means of hire purchase - 4,217 - -

2,403 9,654 - -

Net (gain) loss on sale of non-current assets

(Increase) / decrease in trade debtors and bills of exchange
(Increase) / decrease in inventories

Net exchange differences

Increase / (decrease) in provision for income taxes payable
Increase / (decrease) in other operating liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in trade creditors

(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Parent entity

Ordinary shares issued for acquisition of entities for no cash consideration are shown in note 25.

Dividends satisfied by the issue of shares under the dividend reinvestment plan are shown in note 27 and rights and shares
issued to employees under the Bradken Limited Performance Rights Plan and the Bradken Limited Employee Share Plan for no
cash consideration are shown in note 39.

Non-cash employee benefits expense - share-based payments
Amortisation of finance costs

Consolidated

(Increase) / decrease in deferred tax assets

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Increase / (decrease) in other provisions
Increase / (decrease) in provision for deferred income tax

Consolidated

Profit for the year
Depreciation and amortisation of licences

Parent entity
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38 Earnings per share

2007 2006

Cents Cents

(a) Basic earnings per share
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company 46.3 32.5
Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company 46.3 32.5

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company 45.8 32.3
Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company 45.8 32.3

(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

2007 2006

$'000 $'000

Basic earnings per share
Profit from continuing operations 49,092 33,897

49,092 33,897

49,092 33,897

Diluted earnings per share

49,092 33,897

49,092 33,897

49,092 33,897

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

2007 2006

Number Number

106,023,727 104,306,583
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:

Rights 1,075,394 557,189

107,099,121 104,863,772

(e) Information concerning the classification of securities

(i) Rights

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company used
in calculating diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company used in calculating diluted
earnings per share

Consolidated

Rights granted to employees under the Bradken Performance Rights Plan are considered to be potential ordinary shares and
have been included in the determination of diluted earnings per share to the extent to which they are dilutive. The Rights have
not been included in the determination of basic earnings per share. Details relating to the Rights are set out in note 39.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating basic
earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share

Consolidated

Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company used in calculating basic
earnings per share

Consolidated

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company used
in calculating basic earnings per share

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company used
in calculating basic earnings per share
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39 Share based payments

(a) Employee Share Acquisition Plan

2007 2006 2007 2006

- 6,448 - 6,448

(b) Non-Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan

Summary of share purchases (2006: issues) in the plan:

2007 2006 2007 2006

8,537 10,490 8,537 10,490

4,152 9,793 4,152 9,793
12,689 20,283 12,689 20,283

Non-executive directors may elect to have a percentage of their annual fixed directors’ fees provided in shares under the Non-
Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan (NED plan). Participation in the plan is voluntary.
Non-Executive Directors will not be able to sell or otherwise dispose of the shares until the earliest of 10 years after acquisition
or the Non-Executive Director ceasing to be a director of the Company (except in very limited circumstances). During this period
the shares will be subject to a holding lock.
For the 2007 year shares were acquired on-market for an equivalent value to the percentage of Directors Fees nominated. In
the 2006 year shares were issued as new shares and the number of shares allocated was determined based on the weighted
average price of Shares on ASX on the five trading days up to and including the allocation date to satisfy the allocation.

Shares purchased (2006: issued) under the plan to participating
directors on 19 September 2006 (2006: 24 August 2005)
Shares purchased (2006: issued) under the plan to participating
directors on 20 February 2007 (2006: 23 February 2006)

At 30 June 2007 Directors participating in the plan have an entitlement to the value of $43,200 which is the relevant percentage
of Directors Fees nominated to be taken as shares for the period 1 January 2007 to 30 June 2007. It is expected that shares to
this value will be purchased on-market during August 2007. The exact number of shares to be purchased cannot be determined.

Shares issued under the plan to participating
employees on 3 August 2005

There were no shares issued under this plan for 2007. The 2006 share issue was for employees based in New Zealand. The
weighted average market price of shares issued in 2006 was $2.82. There were no other shares eligible for issuance under the
scheme at 30 June 2007.

Consolidated Parent entity

Solely at the discretion of the Board, similar allocations may be made in subsequent years, subject to the performance of the
Company. Directors who participate in the Non-Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan or the Performance Rights Plan are
not currently eligible to participate in offers under the ESAP.

The Company has a Non-Executive Director Share Acquisition Plan (NED Plan). All current and future Non-Executive Directors
are encouraged to have a percentage of their annual Directors’ fees provided in shares under the NED Plan. Shares will be
allocated to the Non-Executive Directors under the NED Plan and must be held for a specified period.

The Company has an Employee Share Acquisition Plan (ESAP) which was approved at a members meeting on 22 April 2004.
The ESAP is a general employee share plan pursuant to which employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries may
participate, at the invitation of the Board, in the acquisition of shares on terms and conditions determined by the Board. Shares
issued under ESAP rank equally with other fully paid ordinary shares. Employees may elect not to participate in the plan.
In accordance with current Australian Tax legislation in order to allow employees to make an election to seek an exemption from
tax in relation to shares acquired under the ESAP, shares acquired under the ESAP must be held in the ESAP for a minimum of
three years (or earlier cessation of relevant employment). During that time, the shares are subject to a disposal restriction such
that the participant cannot deal in (i.e. sell or transfer) the shares.
Further, an employee participating in the ESAP cannot forfeit shares allocated by the Company in any circumstances. The
Board has the discretion to determine the specific terms and conditions applying to each offer.

Consolidated Parent entity

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



BRADKEN LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007 103

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2007

(continued)

39 Share based payments (continued)

(c) Performance Rights Plan

Summary of Rights issues in the plan:

Grant date
Number of

Rights
Fair value per

Right
91,667 1.57

174,749 1.41
444,068 2.35
206,875 2.80
360,838 3.44

19,202 4.70

The rules of the PRP provide that the Board may determine a price that is payable to exercise a Performance Right, or that no
amount is payable by the executive upon exercise of the Right.

The Performance Rights Plan (PRP) is the Company’s long-term incentive (LTI) scheme for selected key executives. The
Managing Director recommends the list of executives who are entitled to participate in this scheme and seeks approval of the list
from the Board. Under the PRP, eligible executives may be granted Performance Rights (each being a right to acquire a share,
subject to the satisfaction of exercise conditions) on terms and conditions determined by the Board. If the exercise conditions
are satisfied, the Performance Rights may be exercised and the shares issued and delivered to the executive. The Board may
impose restrictions on the disposal of the shares and implement procedures to enforce the restrictions.

The performance conditions are based on the relative total shareholder return (“TSR”) of the Company measured against other
companies in the ASX Small Cap Industrials index during the performance period. TSR measures the total return on investment
of a share taking into account capital appreciation, capital return and dividend income.

0

If any additional persons become entitled to participate in the PRP and their participation requires approval under Chapter 10 of
the Listing Rules, they will not participate in the PRP until shareholder approval is received pursuant to Listing Rule 10.14. Mr
Brian Hodges, being the only Executive Director of the Company, is the only Director entitled to participate in the PRP. If any
other Director is to participate in the PRP, the Company would seek shareholder approval as required by the Listing Rules.

There were no other Rights eligible for issuance under the scheme at 30 June 2007.

All grants of Performance Rights issued so far have been at no cost to participating executives. In relation to future grants, the
Board may impose performance conditions that reflect the Company’s business plans, targets, budgets and its performance
relative to peer groups of companies.

Shares will immediately be allocated on exercise of a Performance Right. Performance Rights may only be exercised following
satisfaction of performance conditions, unless the Board determines an event (such as a takeover bid) has occurred.

The Company’s TSR equals or exceeds performance of the median company in ASX
Small Cap

The Company’s TSR ranked in fourth quartile of companies in ASX Small Cap 100

18 November 2005

Financial periods in which
Rights may vest

30 June 2006 / 2007 / 2008
30 June 2006 / 2007 / 2008

Dividends, changes in share price, and return of capital are included in the TSR calculation which is one of the performance
criteria assessed for the LTI. The specific TSR performance conditions in relation to the grants are:

The Company’s TSR ranked in third quartile of companies in ASX Small Cap

50

Pro rata between 50% and 100%
(2% increase for each higher ranking)

Target Percentage of Rights available
in given year to vest

The Company’s TSR does not meet performance of the median company in ASX Small
Cap

30 March 2007 30 June 2010

In assessing whether the performance hurdles have been met, the Remuneration Committee receives independent data from an
independent investment bank which provides both Bradken's growth from previous financial years and that of the ASX Small
Cap companies. The Company's performance against the hurdle is then determined with each company in the ASX Small Cap
companies and Bradken being ranked in order of growth in results from previous financial years. The Company's percentile
ranking is determined by aggregating the weighting within the ASX Small Cap companies (based on market capitalisation) of
each company ranked below Bradken. The method of assessment was chosen as it provides the Committee with an objective
means of measuring the Company's performance against its peer group.

30 June 2007 / 2008 / 2009
30 June 2005
18 August 2004

Changes to the Performance Rights Plan have been made since 1 July 2006. For issues before 1 July 2006 a maximum one
third may become exercisable for each of the three financial years on which the performance conditions were tested. For grants
made from 1 July 2006 no retesting will be allowed and testing will take place in respect of a 3 year performance period and can
only vest after the end of the 3 year performance period.
To ensure no material disadvantage to the existing scheme participants and to achieve Bradken’s key objective of retaining
valuable employees, there is a transition to the new vesting rules for grants made from 1 July 2006.

30 October 2006 30 June 2010
30 October 2006 30 June 2008 / 2009
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39 Share based payments (continued)

The movements in Rights issues in the plan are as follows:

Grant Date Expiry date
Fair value at
grant date

Balance at
start of the

year

Granted
during the
year

Exercised
during the
year

Expired
during the
year

Balance at
end of the
year

Exercisable at
end of the
year *

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Consolidated and parent entity - 2007

18 August
2004

10 years from
Test date 1.57 67,223 - (36,667) - 30,556 -

30 June
2005

10 years from
Test date 1.41 119,705 - (70,317) - 49,388 -

18 November
2005

10 years from
Test date 2.35 444,068 - (148,023) - 296,045 -

30 October
2006

10 years from
Test date 2.80 - 206,875 - - 206,875 -

30 October
2006

10 years from
Test date 3.44 - 360,838 - - 360,838 -

30 March
2007

10 years from
Test date 4.70 - 19,202 - - 19,202 -

Total 630,996 586,915 (255,007) - 962,904 -

Weighted average price 2.09 3.26 1.98 #DIV/0! 2.83 #DIV/0!

Vesting for the performance period to 30 June 2007 will occur following the test date on 7 August 2007.

Consolidated and parent entity - 2006

18 August
2004

30 June
2007 1.57 91,667 - (24,444) - 67,223 -

30 June
2005

30 June
2007 1.41 174,749 - (35,549) (19,495) 119,705 -

18 November
2005

30 June
2008 2.35 - 444,068 - - 444,068 -

Total 266,416 444,068 (59,993) (19,495) 630,996 -

Weighted average price 1.47 2.35 1.48 1.41 2.09 #DIV/0!

Fair value of Rights granted

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of Rights exercised regularly during the year ended 30 June 2007 was
$6.00 (2006: $3.98). The weighted average remaining contractual life of share Rights outstanding at the end of the period was
1.61 years (2006: 1.79 years).

The assessed fair value at grant date of Rights granted during the year ended 30 June 2007 was between $2.80 and $4.70 per
right (2006: $2.35). The fair value at grant date is determined using a Black Scholes option pricing model that takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the Right, the vesting and performance criteria, the impact of dilution, the non tradeable nature of
the Right, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the
risk free interest rate for the term of the Right.

* For year end 30 June 2006 a number of rights were shown as vested and exercisable at the end of the year. These were
incorrectly shown as the testing date to determine the actual number to vest did not occur until 24 August 2006. The table above
has been amended to reflect the correct position at 30 June 2006. Vesting for the performance period to 30 June 2007 will occur
following the test date on 7 August 2007.
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39 Share based payments (continued)

The following factors and assumptions have been used in determining the fair value of Rights for the issues granted:

Expiry Date Fair value
per Right

Exercise
price

Price of
shares on
grant date

Estimated
volatility

Risk free
interest rate

Dividend
yield

Ten years from Test Date 1.57 - 2.66 90% 5.44% 0.00%
Ten years from Test Date 1.41 - 2.80 90% 5.17% 0.00%
Ten years from Test Date 2.35 - 4.15 90% 5.35% 0.00%
Ten years from Test Date 2.80 - 6.00 90% 5.73% 0.00%
Ten years from Test Date 3.44 - 6.00 90% 5.73% 0.00%
Ten years from Test Date 4.70 - 8.81 90% 6.02% 0.00%

(d) Expenses arising from share based payment transactions

2007 2006 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Rights issued under Performance Rights Plan 1,211 478 1,211 478
Shares purchased under the Non-Executive Directors Share Acquisition Plan 88 88 88 88
Shares issued under the Employee Share Acquisition Plan - 18 - 18

1,299 584 1,299 584

40 Events occurring after balance sheet date

30/03/2007

Grant Date

18/08/2004

Parent entity

Total expenses arising from share based payment transactions recognised during the period as part of employee benefit expense
were as follows:

No material events have occurred that affect the operations of the Group from the end of the financial period ended 30 June 2007
to the date of issue of this report.

30/06/2005

18/11/2005

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

Consolidated

30/10/2006

30/10/2006
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Bradken Limited
Directors’ declaration

30 June 2007

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(b)

(c)

(d)

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

NFH Greiner
Chairman

BW Hodges Sydney
Managing Director 6 August 2007

In the directors' opinion:

The directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer required by section 295A
of the Corporations Act 2001 .

the financial statements and notes set out on pages 51 to 105 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 , including:

giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2007 and of its
performance, as represented by the results of their operations, changes in equity and their cash flows, for the financial
year ended on that date; and

complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting
requirements; and

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable; and

at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the Extended Closed Group
identified in Note 35 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become, subject by virtue of
the deed of cross guarantee described in Note 35.

the audited remuneration disclosures set out on pages 39 to 45 of the directors’ report comply with Accounting Standards
AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures and the Corporations Regulations 2001 ; and

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. Our responsibility is to also express an opinion on the
remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’ report based on our audit. An audit involves performing
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report and the remuneration
disclosures contained in the directors’ report.

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Bradken Limited (the company) which comprises the balance
sheet as at 30 June 2007, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the
year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’
declaration for both Bradken Limited and the Bradken Group (the consolidated entity). The consolidated entity
comprises the company and the entities it controlled at year end or from time to time during the financial year.

We have also audited the remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’ report. As permitted by the
Corporations Regulations 2001 , the company has disclosed information about the remuneration of directors and
executives (“remuneration disclosures”), required by Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures ,
under the heading “remuneration report” in pages 39 to 45 of the directors’ report and not in the financial report.

Auditor’s responsibility

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report and the AASB 124 Remunerations disclosures
contained in the directors' report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Act 2001 . This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB
101 Presentation of Financial Statements , that compliance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The directors of the company are also responsible for the remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’ report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 780 433 757

PricewaterhouseCoopers Centre
26 Honeysuckle Drive
PO Box 798
NEWCASTLE NSW 2300
DX 77 Newcastle
Australia
www.pwc.com/au
Telephone +61 2 4925 1100
Facsimile +61 2 4925 1199

Independent audit report to the members of
Bradken Limited

Report on the financial report and the AASB 124 Remuneration
disclosures contained in the directors’ report

Liability is limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
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whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. Our responsibility is to also express an opinion on the
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procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report and the remuneration
disclosures contained in the directors’ report.

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Bradken Limited (the company) which comprises the balance
sheet as at 30 June 2007, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the
year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’
declaration for both Bradken Limited and the Bradken Group (the consolidated entity). The consolidated entity
comprises the company and the entities it controlled at year end or from time to time during the financial year.

We have also audited the remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’ report. As permitted by the
Corporations Regulations 2001 , the company has disclosed information about the remuneration of directors and
executives (“remuneration disclosures”), required by Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures ,
under the heading “remuneration report” in pages 39 to 45 of the directors’ report and not in the financial report.
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Directors’ responsibility for the financial report and the AASB 124 Remunerations disclosures
contained in the directors' report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Act 2001 . This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB
101 Presentation of Financial Statements , that compliance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The directors of the company are also responsible for the remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’ report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 780 433 757

PricewaterhouseCoopers Centre
26 Honeysuckle Drive
PO Box 798
NEWCASTLE NSW 2300
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Australia
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disclosures contained in the directors’ report

Liability is limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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http://www.pwc.com/au/financialstatementaudit.

(a) the financial report of Bradken Limited is in accordance with the Corporation Act 2001 , including:

(i)

(ii)

(b)

PricewaterhouseCoopers

D A Turner Sydney
Partner

In our opinion:

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Independence
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 .

Auditor’s opinion on the financial report

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report and the remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’ report, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report and the remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’
report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report and the remuneration disclosures contained in
the directors’ report.

Our procedures include reading the other information in the Annual Report to determine whether it contains any
material inconsistencies with the financial report.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or management.

For further explanation of an audit, visit our website

6 August 2007

giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2007
and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Regulations 2001 ); and

the consolidated financial statements and notes also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards
as disclosed in Note 1.

Auditor’s opinion on the AASB 124 Remuneration disclosures contained in the directors’ report
In our opinion, the remuneration disclosures that are contained in pages 39 to 45 of the directors’ report comply with
Accounting Standard AASB 124.

Liability is limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Liability is limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Shareholder Information
30 June 2007

A. Distribution of equity security holders

Analysis of numbers of equity security holders by size of holding:

1 – 1,000
1,001 – 5,000
5,001 – 10,000
10,000 – 100,000
100,000 and over

B. Equity security holders

Twenty largest quoted equity security holders
The names of the twenty largest holders of quoted equity securities are listed below:

Name Number held
Percentage of
issued shares

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 17,674,754 16.7%

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 10,704,515 10.1%

ANZ Nominees Limited 10,206,346 9.6%

National Nominees Limited 9,027,486 8.5%

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 7,136,258 6.7%

Australian Foundation Investment Company Limited 5,000,000 4.7%

Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 4,298,200 4.1%

Mr B W Hodges 2,713,373 2.6%

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited A/c 2 1,801,303 1.7%

Queensland Investment Corporation 1,384,790 1.3%

Bond Street Custodians Limited 1,362,803 1.3%

INVIA Custodian Pty Limited 1,267,404 1.2%

UBS Nominees Pty Limited 954,850 0.9%

Australian Reward Investment Alliance 930,073 0.9%

AMP Life Limited 871,734 0.8%

UCA Growth Fund Limited 750,000 0.7%

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited A/c 3 710,699 0.7%

Mirrabooka Investments Limited 565,000 0.5%

The Australian National University 550,000 0.5%

Famarn Pty Limited 500,001 0.5%

78,409,589 74.0%

The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 20 August 2007.

Class of equity security

1

Ordinary shares

10

0

Ordinary
shares

3,423

Rights

The number of shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares is 27.

2,909
633
418
57

37
1

7,440 49

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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Shareholder Information
30 June 2007

(continued)

C. Substantial shareholders

Substantial holders in the company are set out below:

Shareholder Number of ordinary shares

Barclays Global Investors Australia

D. Voting rights

(a) Ordinary shares

(b) Rights
No voting rights

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and
upon a poll each share shall have one vote.

9,866,314

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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